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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present the Annual Report of Kuantan Flour Mills Berhad 
(the “Company” or “KFM”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for our financial year ended 30th September 2018 
(“FY2018”). 

We resumed our flour milling operations during May 2017 vide business collaboration with Lotus Essentials Sdn Bhd.

In 2018, the Group focused its efforts to improve our flour milling operations and business efficiencies. Gradually we 
navigate through the challenging market conditions; re-establishing our customer base and diligently pursuing for their 
long term confidence and trust in our operation capabilities, delivery capacity and consistent product quality.

Vide prudent and proactive decision-making, we managed to maintain a fine balance in managing our working capital, 
rationalising our cost structure, enhancing our operational efficiency and expanding our client base.

As we steer through the challenging and difficult times, we remain focused on preparing ourselves as a sustainable and 
respectable flour miller in Malaysia.

I wish to highlight that the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting 
Standards and the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

There is an increase in the sale of the flour products in our flour milling business. The Group’s total revenue increased 
by 418.64 % from RM 7.521 million for the financial year 2017 (“FY2017”) to RM39.007 million in FY2018.

The increase in revenue was due to the stabilization and continuous improvements albeit gradual market expansion of 
our flour milling operation and distribution, supported by the additional revenue generated from the sale of tapioca starch 
trading business. 

In tandem with the increased revenue, cost of sales increased by 257.69% from RM10.825 million for FY2017 to 
RM38.720 million for FY2018.  

All in, gross profit has increased by 108.68% from a gross loss of RM3.305 million for FY2017 to gross profit of 
RM0.287 million in FY2018. 

Overall expenses have decreased by RM5.764 million from RM8.960 million for FY2017 to RM3.196 million for FY2018 
resulting from lower administrative expenses. 

Decrease in administrative expenses of RM 6.607 million was mainly due to a decrease in professional fees in relation 
to corporate exercise, repair and interest cost. The selling and marketing expenses increased by RM0.844 million.

Albeit recording higher revenue and lower expenses, the Group incurred a operational loss albeit a lower loss before 
tax of RM 2.905 the financial year ended 30 September 2018 as compared to the previous year’s loss before tax of 
RM12.260 million. The higher loss before tax incurred in 2017 was mainly due to the maintenance cost required to 
re-initiate and to stabilise the flour milling operation, professional fees incurred on the proposed regularization plan and 
interest cost. 

Overview of the Industry

With the good rationalization of the general flour subsidy regime instituted by the Government in 2016 whereby the 
subsidy for the 25kg packing of the general purpose flour was abolished, the prospects for the group’s flour business 
have improved, there is a level playing field for all in the Malaysian flour milling industry where players can freely 
compete.   

There are 12 flour milling companies in Malaysia and the industry has been dominated by three major players namely 
Federal Flour Mills (FFM), Malayan Flour Mills (MFM), Interflour Group with 9 other operators including KFM. There are 
stiff competitions among wheat flour millers in Malaysia, as well as imports. The institutional customers are the dominant 
flour users in Malaysia, such as Gardenia, Kraft and Nestlé dominate the processing and consumer markets.

Despite of the flour business intense competitive environment, wheat based diet is growing increasingly important in 
Malaysia. It has become part of the staple food second only to rice as more Malaysians consume wheat-based products 
such as pasta, pizzas, sandwiches bread, noodles, roti canai and confectionery.



5

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)

Malaysians living standards are improving annually and with the increased awareness for light and healthy living, the 
demand for high quality bread and bakery items are increasing particularly in the urban centers.

We are thus expecting the continuous growth of the flour market as there is a rising trend of demand in the user 
industries which shall create opportunities for KFM to reestablish its position in the market. The uptake for wheat-based 
food products is expected to be in line with the wave of the population and the economic growth of the country. 

The Way Forward

As a small miller, it is now crucial to the company’s sustainable competitiveness and operational efficiencies for it to 
institute new milling technology and highly controlled production system and processes to effectively meet the stringent 
food safety requirements, product traceability, quality control assurance and stable consistent specific blended flour 
quality and product performance for our corporate clients.

Research and product development will be an integral part of KFM strategy to improving sustainable performance. 
We will work closely with our corporate clients to produce flours that meet their specific needs.

Subsidiary Companies

All subsidiary companies remain dormant during the financial year under review.

Prospects For The Year Ahead
  
I am confident that KFM will perform better in 2019/2020 barring unforeseeable and externally generated circumstances 
such as adverse economic cycles, wheat commodity prices, ocean freight charges and the ringgit stability.

As we move forward, the Group will focus on our effort for continuous improvement of KFM cost structure, operational 
efficiency, working capital management and supply chain stability with the objective to improve both the sales and profit 
margins. 

KFM had and will continue to embark on appropriate corporate exercises to generate strong funding for the above said 
purpose. We are aware that there is much work to be done as we endeavor to re-establish and re-entrench ourselves in 
the flour market.

In conclusion, we have made minor progress during the financial year ended 2018 and we are confident that the 
groundworks we have established will provide the Group with a platform for growth over the long term we will be in a 
very strong position to better serve our customers and to significantly improve our financial performance and position. 

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to take this opportunity to acknowledge and thanks the stewardship, 
dedication and support of the Board.

The strong commitment, their loyalty, the hard work and contributions by the Management and the Staff of the Group 
during the year despite the myriad operational challenges.

On behalf of the Board and Management, we would also like to thank all our valued shareholders, customers, suppliers, 
bankers, auditors, Government agencies, business associates and investors, for their unwavering support and 
confidence in the Group. We look forward to your continued confidence and support.

The Board of Directors, the Management and Staff of KFM would also like to express our sincere appreciation to our 
ex Director (Audit Committee Chairman), Mr. Leong Chen Nyen who has made valuable contributions to the Company 
during his tenure in office.

Thank you.

Kushairi bin Zaidel
Chairman 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview of Business and Operations

Kuantan Flour Mills Berhad (‘KFM’) is principally engaged in flour milling and trading in its related products. Apart from 
wheat flour milling activities and trading of tapioca starch, the Company has recommenced its premixed flour business 
in January 2018.   

The Company has been classified as an affected listed issuer under PN17 since 28 December 2015. The Company 
has submitted a revised regularization plan on 7 August 2018 to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and approval has 
been granted on 11 January 2019. 

This statement contains the management discussion and analysis of the performance of the Group for FYE 2018 and 
should be read in conjunction with the audited Financial Statement of the Group for FYE 2018 as set out in the ensuing 
sections of this Annual Report.   
 
Corporate Developments  

During the financial year, the following events took place:

Following the submission of initial Proposed Regularization Plan to Bursa Securities on 29 September 2017, the 
Company has withdrawn the application on 9 February 2018.

On 14 March 2018, Bursa Securities has granted an extension of time up to 8 August 2018 for the Company to 
resubmit its regularization plan, subject to a requisite announcement in relation to the said regularization plan being 
made by 31 May 2018.

On 31 May 2018, KAF Investment Berhad had on behalf of the Board announced that KFM proposes to undertake the 
Proposed Regularization plan to regularize its financial condition in accordance with Paragraph 8.04(3) of the Listing 
Requirements.

On 24 July 2018, the Company has entered into supplemental Debt Settlement Agreement (“DSA”) and Debt Conversion 
Agreement (“DCA”) to extend the deadline for the fulfilment of conditions precedent to the DSA and DCA by another 
12 months to 26 September 2019.

On 7 August 2018, an application pertaining to the Proposed Regularization Plan together with a listing application for 
the new securities proposed to be issued pursuant to the Proposals has been submitted to Bursa Securities.

On 11 January 2019, Bursa Securities has granted its approval on the Proposed Regularization Plan of the Company.
   
Review of Group’s Financial Results and Financial Conditions

The following table is the financial highlights of the Group for the past five (5) financial years: -

   2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
    ‘ 000  ‘ 000  ‘ 000  ‘ 000  ‘ 000

Revenue 39,007             7,521      3,924    24,864    41,655

Operating loss (2,905)   (12,259)             (11,795)   (16,459)     (1,715)

Loss before tax (2,905)             (12,260)   (12,093)   (16,845)     (2,193)

Loss after tax and minority interests (2,903)             (12,260)   (12,092)   (16,845)     (2,193)

Shareholders’ funds (25,972)             (23,068)   (10,807)      1,286    16,558

Net tangible assets (25,972)             (23,068)   (10,807)      1,286    16,558

Tangible assets 15,608             15,244      8,233    23,504    30,117

Basic loss per share (sen) (4.25)           (17.97)       (17.72)     (25.07)      (3.36)

Net Assets per Share (sen) (38.06)           (33.81)     (15.84)       1.88      25.42
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued) 

The Group has managed to improve its revenue substantially with 418.64% year-to-year increase of RM31.486 million. 
to RM39.007 million (FYE 2017: RM7.521 million). This is mainly attributed to the Group’s sale efforts on gradually 
regaining of its flour sales market ever since it resumed operations in May 2017, re-introduction of its premixed flour 
since beginning 2018 and strong performance in tapioca starch trading. 

The Group has managed to reverse its gross loss position from RM3.305 million for last financial year end 
to current financial year end with RM0.287 million gross profit position. The significant improvement was largely brought 
by positive contributions from trading of tapioca starch and lower average raw material cost procured for wheat flour 
during current financial year under review.  
     
Despite the Group still suffering from a loss before tax of RM2.905 million (FYE 2017 : RM12.260 million), it has 
managed to reduce it loss position substantially which was mainly due to :

Apart from the above improved gross margin during the financial year, significant reduction in administrative cost to 
RM1.762 million (FYE 2017: RM8.369 million). However, the said reduction was offset by one-time impairment of plant, 
machinery & equipment during the financial year. In FYE 2017, a large portion of the administrative cost incurred was 
due to professional fee, repair cost & interest cost.

For FYE 2018, the higher selling and marketing cost rose by 143.46% year-on-year to RM1.434 million (FYE 2017:  
RM0.589 million) was in line with the extensive marketing efforts in regaining its previous marketing networks as well as 
exploring into new market share.  These has resulted in significant improvements on sales performance during current 
financial year.    
                                                                 
The Group’s inventories level for current FYE  2018 was RM4.076 million (FYE 2017 : RM4.895 million). This represents 
a decrease of 16.73%. The Management will continue its efforts to improve its inventory management by minimizing 
stock level and stock holding period where possible. 

In tandem with the increase in sales revenue, the total trade receivables have surged to RM4.902 million (FYE 2017: 
RM0.706 million) which was largely due to additional credit sales granted to customers.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents stood at RM1.376 million for current FYE 2018. (FYE 2017: 0.334 million). 

The Group has no borrowing as at end of current financial year. 

However, on the payables side, it has increased substantially to RM41.566 million (FYE 2017: RM38.297 million) which 
was mainly due to the advances and supplier’s credit extended by Lotus Essential Sdn Bhd to the Company pursuant to 
the business collaboration agreement entered between both parties to fund on the purchase of raw materials and other 
operational costs incurred during the period. 

The current loss after tax of RM2.905 million has increased the negative shareholders’ fund to RM25.972 million 
(FYE 2017 : negative RM23.068 million).   

Operations   

Apart from continuing to strengthen our marketing efforts to regain our network of customers ever since we resumed our 
business operations in May 2017 and to improve our value chain by exploring into other flour related products to 
improve our revenue base, the Company also actively explored into overseas market.

During the financial year, the Company has signed up Memorandum of Understanding (‘MOU’) with various new partners.

In February 2018, the Company has entered into a MOU with a foreign company pertaining to a proposed collaboration 
through either a business collaboration arrangement between both parties or a direct acquisition of a majority equity 
interest in the foreign company to facilitate the Company’s expansion into trading of starch business as well as its 
premixed flour in oversea market. Further, the Company also entered into a MOU with a local company pertaining to a 
proposed collaboration through either a business collaboration arrangement between both parties or a direct acquisition 
of a majority equity interest in the local company to facilitate the Company’s expansion into trading and retailing of pet 
food products with the eventual plan of manufacturing of pet food products.

During July 2018, the Company has successfully obtained ISO 9001:2015.  A certification on the Company conducted 
and registered by an independent certification body on the management system for manufacturing of wheat flour and 
premixed flour.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued) 

Anticipated Business Risks

The business risks facing by the Group basically include market competitions, volatility of imported raw material prices, 
movements of currency exchange rates and performance of user industries.  
 
 a) Market competitions  

  The flour milling sector remains competitive among the flour milling operators both locally as well as exports.   

 b) Volatility of raw material prices   

  Wheat and tapioca are the main raw materials that are used in wheat flour milling and tapioca starch trading 
  respectively. Both the wheat and tapioca are globally traded commodities, and as a result, their prices may 
  fluctuate from time to time. The price of wheat and tapioca are influenced by global macroeconomic factors 
  including, among others, supply and demand of wheat and tapioca, as well as stock levels. 

  As the cost of these raw materials constitute a major part of wheat flour and tapioca starch cost, managing of 
  these costs remain key challenges. 

  Any increase in the prices of these imported raw materials if unable to pass onto customers on time, it may 
  adversely affect the financial performance of the Company.    

  Stability of imported raw material prices remain a key challenge for all the industry players. This is an inherent 
  risk faced by all the industry players and the Group strives to minimize the impact by having additional material 
  purchases and storage when prices are relatively low.  

 (c) Volatility of currency exchange rates  

  As KFM’s main raw materials such as wheat and tapioca are fully imported from oversea markets and are 
  traded in US currency. Fluctuations in US/RM rates will have great impact on its raw material costs and hence 
  its financial performance. However, during the current financial year, the Company has purchased the 
  aforesaid raw materials locally from its business collaboration partner, Lotus Essential Sdn Bhd. Hence, the 
  aforesaid currency risk is protected.

 (d)   Dependency on performance of user industries 

  Flour is mainly used in food manufacturing industries and food services operations. Any adverse performance 
  in user industries would affect the demand for these products and hence, the financial performance of the 
  Company.  

OUTLOOK

Malaysia’s economic outlook is expected to remain strong given its resilient and robust financial system. The forecast 
Malaysia’s economic growth rate of between 4.5% to 5.0% for 2019 due to upbeat domestic and external trade sectors’ 
performance on the back of supportive economic policies, continued wage growth and moderating inflation will boost 
consumer spending further.  

The consumer sectors including flour milling industry and its related products are likely to see higher sales due to 
increasing demand while competitions remain stiff.  Apart from making efforts to explore new markets to expand our 
revenue base, the Management will continue its efforts on operational efficiency and effective cost management to 
improve the Group’s financial performance. 

Baring for any unforeseen circumstances, the Board is optimistic that the Group will be able to maintain its growth 
momentum on sales performance and improving financial performance.

With the approval of the Proposed Regularization Plan by Bursa Securities on 11 January 2019, the Board is confident 
that the Company will be able to further increase its sales and financial performance upon implementation and ultimately 
uplifting the Company from PN17 status. 
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The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Kuantan Flour Mills Berhad (“KFM” or “the Company”) fully support the 
recommendations of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“Code”) in maintaining a high standard of 
corporate governance and to ensure that the principles and best practices of corporate governance are observed and 
adopted as a fundamental part of discharging its responsibilities to protect and enhance stakeholders’ value.

This statement gives the Shareholders an overview of the corporate governance practices of the Company during 
the financial year ended 2018. 

PRINCIPLE 1 – ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES   

Functions of the Board and the Management  
The Board is the ultimate decision-making body of the Company and is responsible for oversight and overall management 
of the Group.

The Board, comprising of members with a diverse range of business, financial and technical background, recognizes the 
clear distinction of the roles and responsibilities between the Board and the Management.

The Board sets the strategic direction and vision of the Company and takes full responsibility in leading, governing, guiding 
and monitoring the entire performance of the Group.

The Board reviews and implements key policies and is responsible for the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Group’s risk management and internal control system.

The Management, on the other hand, is responsible for assisting the Board in implementing the policies and procedures 
adopted by the Board to achieve the Group’s objectives and in running the Group’s day-to-day business operations.

Board’s Roles and Responsibilities
The Company is led by an experienced and dynamic Board. It has a balanced board composition with effective 
Independent Directors. The Board provides stewardship to the Group’s strategic direction and operations, and 
ultimately enhancing shareholders value. To fulfill this role, the Board is responsible for the following:-

 - To review the performance of the Group on a quarterly basis;
 - To receive updates and oversee the conduct of the Group’s business and operations;
 - To deliberate on proposals presented and recommended by the Management;
 - To review and approve the annual and quarterly results, acquisition and disposal of major assets;
 - To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control system;
 - To ensure that there are plans in place for orderly succession of senior management; 
 - To oversee the development and implementation of a communication policy for the Group; 
 - To responsible for matters material to the Group reserved for the Board’s decisions; and
 - To examine its own size and composition to determine the impact on the Board’s effectiveness.

Directors’ Code of Conduct  
The Directors shall be guided by the Code of Ethics and Conduct for Directors issued by the Companies’ Commission 
of Malaysia. It sets out the ethical standards and underlying core ethical values to guide actions and behaviors of 
all Directors and also employees of the Group. The Directors shall observe the Code of Ethics in the performance of their 
duties which are vital for their business decisions.

Sustainability  
The Board recognizes the importance of sustainability and its increasing significance in business. The Board is 
committed to understand and implement sustainable practices, and exploring the benefits to the business whilst 
attempting to achieve the right balance between the needs of the wider community, the requirements of shareholders 
and stakeholders and economics success. 

The Board recognizes the environmental sustainability role as a corporate citizen in his business approach, and 
always endeavors in adopting most environmental friendly, ecological and cost effective production process.  
The ultimate objective is to achieve greater efficiency, better performance of the Group and improved quality of life to 
the society at large.

Access to Information and Advice   
All Directors have full and unrestricted access to all information of the Group on a timely and accurate manner to 
enable them to discharge their roles and responsibilities. In addition, the Directors have full and unrestricted access to 
the Company Secretary, the external auditors for independent professional advice and from external independent 
expert in deliberation of their duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

Company Secretary  
The Board recognizes the fact that the Company Secretary should be suitably qualified and capable of carrying out 
its duties as required of the post.

The primary role of the Company Secretary is to provide unhindered advice and services for the Directors, as and 
when need arises with the primary objective to enhance the effective functioning of the Board and to ensure 
regulatory compliance. To ensure the proper conduct of the General Meetings, Board Committees’ meetings and any 
other meetings and the preparation of minutes thereof. In additions, to keep proper records of all the Board’s documents.

The Company Secretary facilitates the Board on overall compliance with the Main Market Listing Requirements 
(‘MMLR’) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad as well as keeping the Board updated with the latest enhancements in 
corporate governance, changes in the legal regulatory framework, new statutory requirements and best practices.

Board Charter  
The Board recognizes and observes the role, composition and responsibilities of the Board embodying in the 
principles of the Code and serve as a source of reference for new Board member. The Charter sets out guiding 
principles of good corporate governance to ensure fairness, transparency, accountability and responsibility. 
It provides guidance for Directors and Management regarding their roles in discharging their duties towards the 
Company as well as boardroom activities.

PRINCIPLE 2 – STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION                                                                                             

The Board of Directors delegates specific responsibilities to the respective Committees of the Board namely, the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee, all of which have their terms of reference to 
govern their respective scopes and responsibilities.      

These Committees ensure greater attention, objectivity and independence are provided in the deliberations of 
specific Board agenda. The Board has defined the terms of reference for each Committee and the Chairman of 
these respective Committees would report to the Board during the Board meetings on significant matters and salient 
matters deliberated in the Committees.   

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Procedure
The Nomination and Remuneration Committees, sub-committees of the Board, under its terms of reference 
recommend new Directors to the Board and to review annually the mix of skills and experiences and other qualities to 
enable the Board to function competently and efficiently. In furtherance to that, the Committee will also recommend to 
the Board the framework of executive remuneration package for Executive Director based on his duties and 
responsibilities. It is nevertheless the ultimate decision of the entire Board to approve the appointment of new Directors 
and to approve the remuneration of these Directors. Directors do not participate in decision on their own 
remuneration packages. The Directors’ fees are approved at the Annual General Meeting by the Shareholders, 
based on the recommendation of the Board.                               

Both the Nomination and Remuneration Committees currently comprise the following member:  
Kushairi bin Zaidel (Chairman)
Low Koon Min (Member) (Appointed on 28 January 2019)                   

Due to the size of the above Committees during the financial year, the above functions were retained at the Board Level.

The Company Secretary who is also the secretary to the Nomination and Remuneration Committees ensures that all 
the necessary information is obtained, and all legal and regulatory obligations are met.                              
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

The aggregate Directors’ remuneration paid or payable or otherwise made available to all Directors of the Company 
during the financial year ended 30 September 2018 are as follows:-

PRINCIPLE 3 – REINFORCE INDEPENDENCE

Annual Assessment of Independence 
The Board has conducted self assessment on the independence of Independent Directors with a view to ensure the 
Independent Directors bring independent and objective judgment to the Board and this mitigate any conflict of interest or 
undue influence from interested parties. The criteria for assessing the independence of an Independent Director include 
the relationship between the Independent Director and the Company and his involvement in any significant transaction 
with the Company.  

Tenure of an Independent Non-Executive Director 
The maximum tenure of an Independent Non-Executive Director shall be for a cumulative period of nine (9) years. 
The Independent Non-Executive Director may continue to serve on the Board beyond the nine (9) years tenure 
provided the Independent Non-Executive is re-designated as a Non-Independent Director. Further continuation is 
subject to the assessment of the Nomination Committee (‘NC”), justification of the Board and approval of the Shareholders.

As at last financial year ended 30 September 2017, both En Kushairi bin Zaidel and Mr Leong Chen Nyen had served 
the Board for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years as Independent, Non-Executive Directors. The Board 
through its NC had conducted assessments and was satisfied that both the Independent Directors had fulfilled the 
criteria under the definition of Independent Director as stated in Main Market Listing Requirements and were able to 
provide objective and independent judgement in deliberation of the Board’s agenda. Based on the Board’s assessment, 
the Board had recommended to put forward a Resolution at the 33rd Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) to retain both 
as Independent Directors notwithstanding that their tenure as Independent Directors had exceeded the nine (9) 
years limit as recommended under the Code. Mr Leong Chen Nyen had resigned on 23rd May 2018 due to health reason.  

Shareholders’ Approval for Retaining Independent Director exceeding 9 years of service     
The Board recommends and seeks for shareholders’ approval for retaining Independent, Non-Executive Directors 
exceeding nine (9) years of service based on the following justifications:

 i) They had fulfilled the criteria under the definition of Independent Director as stated in the MMLR of Bursa 
  Malaysia Securities Berhad and therefore were able to bring independent and objective judgment to the Board;
 ii) Their long tenure with the Company had neither impaired nor compromised their independent judgment, 
  they were free from any business or other relationships which could interfere with their exercise of 
  independent judgment;
 iii) They provided effective check and balance in the proceeding of the Board and the Board Committees;
 iv) They continued to remain objective and are able to exercise independent judgment in expressing their views 
  and in participating in deliberations and decision making of the Board and Board Committees in the best 
  interest of the Company;
 v) They exhibited high commitment and devoted sufficient time and attention to their responsibilities as 
  Independent Directors of the Company; and
 vi) They had met with the attendance requirements for Board Meetings pursuant to the MMLR. During the 
  financial year under review, they had each attended all the Board meetings held. This testifies to their 
  dedication in discharging the responsibilities expected of an Independent Director.

    Meeting   
	 	 	 	 and	Other		 	 Benefits
  Salary Fee Allowance Bonus in kind Total

Kushairi bin Zaidel 
(Independent, Non Executive Chairman) -  36,000                 -          -              -       36,000 

Iskandar Zurkanain bin Mohamed 
(Independent, Non Executive Director)      -  36,000                 -          -              -       36,000 

Leong Chen Nyen 
(Independent, Non Executive Director) 
(Resigned on 23 May 2018)      -  24,000                 -          -              -        24,000

Low Koon Min 
(Independent, Non-Executive Director 
(Appointed on 28 January 2019)  - - - - - -

      -    96,000                 -          -              -        96,000 
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PRINCIPLE 4 – FOSTER COMMITMENT

Time Commitment 
During the financial year ended 30 September 2018, the Board met on 5 occasions.

All the Directors review the Board’s reports prior to the Board meeting. The reports are being issued at least 7 days 
prior to the meeting in order for Board members to obtain further explanations and information, where necessary. 
The Board’s reports include (i) Progress report of the Company, and (ii) Major operational and financial issues. 
All proceedings from the Board meetings are minuted and signed by the Chairman of the meeting.   

The Board, via the Nomination Committee reviews annually the time commitment of the Directors and ensure that 
they are able to carry out their own responsibilities and contributions to the Board. In addition, the Directors have 
from time to time visited the factory plant and met with the Management periodically to actively discuss on the 
Group’s financial and operation matters.      

During the financial year, 5 board meetings (FYE 2017:7) were conducted, and these meetings were attended 
by members of the Board during their tenure in office with the Company Secretary in attendance as follows: 

Composition of the Board
The Board currently comprises of three (3) Directors. With the assistance of the Management to implement the policies 
and decisions of the Board, presently the Board collectively overseeing the business and initiates business development 
efforts for the Group whilst the Non-Executive Directors bring a wide range of business experience and expertise to 
the Board for discussions and decision making. The Articles of Association of the Company’s Constitution allow 
a minimum of two (2) and a maximum of nine (9) Directors.   

The other Independent, Non-Executive Director Mr Leong Chen Nyen has resigned on 23 May 2018 due to health reason. 

The Company has applied to Bursa Securities to comply with paragraph 15.09(1)(a),15.09(1)(c) and 15.19 of the 
Listing Requirements and has been granted an extension till 22 February 2019 for the Company to comply.

The Company has appointed Ms Low Koon Min as Independent, Non-Executive Director on 28 January 2019. 

A brief profile of each Director is presented on page 22 of this Annual Report.     

Directors’ Training   
All the Directors have attended the Mandatory Accreditation Programme (“MAP”) prescribed by Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad. For new Directors, a familiarization programme will be conducted for them. This includes a 
presentation of the Group’s operations, meetings with Management and site visits in order to facilitate their 
understanding of the Group’s operations and requirements.

The Directors are encouraged to attend relevant seminars and courses to keep themselves abreast on the various 
issues faced in the changing business environment, regulatory and corporate governance developments to enhance 
their professionalism, skill and knowledge to effectively discharging their duties and responsibilities.

Directors are mindful that they must continue to enhance their skills and knowledge to maximize their effectiveness 
during their tenure. Throughout their years in office, the Directors are continually updated on the Group’s business 
and the relevant regulatory requirements by the Management and the Company Secretary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

 Director Number of Board Attendance
  Meetings held during
  Tenure in office

 Kushairi bin Zaidel   5 5  

 Iskandar Zurkanain bin Mohamed   5 5
  
 Leong Chen Nyen  (Resigned on 23rd May 2018)   2 2

   Low Koon Min (Appointed on 28 January 2019)                    - -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

PRINCIPLE 5 – UPHOLD INTEGRITY IN FINANCIAL REPORTING       

Compliance with Applicable Financial Reporting Standards      
The financial statements of the Group were prepared in accordance with the applicable approved accounting standards 
in Malaysia and the provisions of Companies Act, 2016.

The Board is committed to provide a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance, 
position and prospects primarily through the annual financial statements, quarterly financial reports and corporate 
announcements on significant developments to the shareholders.

The Audit Committee (“AC”) assists the Board in overseeing the financial reporting process and ensuring the quality 
of the financial reporting by the Group. The AC reviews and monitors the accuracy and integrity of the Group’s annual 
and quarterly financial statements for announcement to the public within stipulated time frame.

In reviewing all the published annual and quarterly financial statements during the financial year ended 30 September 
2018, the Directors took due care and reasonable steps to ensure compliance with the applicable accounting standards 
in all material aspects. For this purpose, the Director are updated and briefed by the External Auditors on current 
accounting practices, new MFRS, amendments/ improvements to MFRSs, new IC Interpretation (IC Int) and 
amendments to IC Int that have been issued but have yet to be effective.

Directors’ responsibility statement in respect of the preparation of the audited financial statements is set out on page 23
of this annual report.

Assessment of Suitability and Independence of External Auditors  
The Company has always maintained a transparent and professional relationship with the External Auditors through 
the Audit Committee (‘AC’).

The criteria for the External Auditors’ assessment include quality of services, sufficiency of resources, communication 
and interaction, audit planning, independence, objectively and professional skepticism. In determining the 
independence of the External Auditors, the AC reviewed and assessed all aspects of their relationships with them 
including the processes, policies and safeguards adopted by the Group and the External Auditors relating to audit 
independence. The AC also reviewed and assessed the External Auditor’s performance and independence.
.
The AC has been explicitly accorded the power to communicate directly with the External Auditors. The External 
Auditors are invited to attend the Audit Committee Meetings to facilitate the exchange of view on issues requiring 
attention. The role of AC in relation to the External Auditors is described on page 16.

A summary of the activities of the AC during the year including the evaluation of independent audit process are set 
out on page 15 of this annual report.

PRINCIPLE 6 – RECOGNIZE AND MANAGE RISKS

Sound Framework to Manage Risks
The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of having an effective governance embedding risk management 
and internal control processes, and acknowledges its overall responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal 
control covering not only financial controls but also controls relating to operational, compliance and risk management 
to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets.

The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control is set out on pages 17 to 18 of this Annual Report.

Internal Audit Function   
The Group has the policy to outsource its internal audit function to external professional services firm, to assist the Board 
and Audit Committee in providing an independent assessment on the adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness of the 
Group’s internal control system and risk management.

The Internal Auditors were engaged to conduct regular review and appraisal of the effectiveness of the governance, risk 
management and internal control process within the Group. The appointed Internal Auditors report directly to the Audit 
Committee. They are given full access to all the documents relating to the Company and Group’s governance, financial 
statements and operational assessments.

The Board acknowledges that the risk management and internal control are an integral part of good governance. Risk is 
inherent in all business activities. It is however, not the Group’s objective to eliminate risk totally but to provide structural 
means to identify, prioritize and manage the risks involved in all the Group’s activities and to balance between cost and 
benefit of managing and treating risks, and the anticipated returns that will be derived from.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

During the financial year under review, the appointed Internal Auditors had conducted the followings:

 - Internal control reviews on Finance and Accounts, Sales and Collection, Purchase and Payable and 
  Human Resource; and   
 - Board Governance Policies and Terms of Reference for various Board’s Committees.                   

PRINCIPLE 7 – ENSURE TIMELY AND HIGH QUALITY OF DISCLOSURE          

Corporate Disclosure Policies   
The core communication channel with the Stakeholders employed by the Company is the announcements made through 
Bursa Securities and it is the Company policy that all material announcements to be made through Bursa Securities are 
to be approved by the Board prior to its release to Bursa Securities. The Board observes all disclosure requirements as 
laid down by MMLR and Capital Markets and Services Act 2007 to have all material event and information to be 
disseminated publicly and transparently on timely basis with factual, accurate and complete information to ensure fair 
and equitable access and by all stakeholders without selective disclosure of such information to specific individuals or 
groups. Therefore, information that is price-sensitive or any undisclosed material information about the Group is not 
disclosed to any party until it is ready for simultaneous distribution.

Leverage on Information Technology for Effective Dissemination of Information   
The Company’s website www.kfmb.com.my  provides relevant information on the Group which is accessible to the public. 

PRINCIPLE   8 – STRENGTHEN RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN COMPANY AND SHAREHOLDERS         

Encourage Shareholder’s Participation at General Meetings   
The Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) remains the principal forum for dialogue with the Shareholders where they are 
encouraged to meet Board to have greater insight into the Group operations. Notice of AGM together with copy of the 
Company’s Annual Report will be sent to Shareholders at least twenty-one (21) days prior to the meeting. Shareholders 
who are unable to attend are allowed to appoint proxies to attend, speak and vote on their behalf. At the AGM, 
Shareholders are given the opportunity to raise questions on the Group’s activities and prospects as well as to 
communicate their expectations and concerns to the Company. The Board and the Management together with the 
External Auditors and Company Secretary are available to provide feedback and responses to questions raised by 
Shareholders during the meeting.

Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) is held as and when Shareholders’ approvals are required on specific matters.

Poll Voting  
The Company has always made the necessary preparation for poll voting for all resolutions tabled at the AGM and EGM. 
The Company will explore the suitability and feasibility of employing electronic means for poll voting. 

Pursuant to the Paragraph 8.29A(1) of MMLR of Bursa Securities, all resolutions deliberated during the General 
Meetings will be put to vote by way of poll and the voting results will be released to Bursa Malaysia on the same day

Effective Communication and Proactive Engagements with Shareholders   
The Company is committed to upholding high standards of transparency and promotion of investor confidence through 
the provision of comprehensive, accurate and quality information on a timely and even basis.

The Company recognizes the importance of communicating with its Shareholders and does this through the Annual 
Report, AGM and announcements via Bursa Securities. During the AGM, sufficient time will be allocated for 
Shareholders to ask questions about the Group and its operations.

In addition, Shareholders are able to obtain latest information of the Group at the Company’s website.

This Statement was made in accordance with a Resolution of the Board dated 28 January 2019.
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The members of the Audit Committee of the Company are pleased to present their report for the financial year ended 
30 September 2018.

The present members of the Audit Committee comprise: -
Iskandar Zurkanain bin Mohamed                                
(Chairman, Independent, Non-Executive Director) 
Kushairi bin Zaidel                          
(Member, Independent, Non-Executive Chairman)
Low Koon Min
(Member, Independent, Non-Executive Director) (Appointed on 28 January 2019)                   
Leong Chen Nyen                           
(Chairman, Independent, Non-Executive Director) (Resigned on 23 May 2018)

Meetings
The Committee shall meet at least four (4) times annually, or more frequently as circumstances dictate. As part of the 
duty to foster open communication, the internal auditors and a representative(s) of the external auditors (if required) 
will normally attend the meetings. Other Board members and senior management staff may attend upon invitation by 
the Committee. The Company Secretary or any other person appointed by the Committee for this purpose shall act 
as Secretary for the Committee and as a reporting procedure, the minutes shall be circulated to all members of the 
Committee and the Board.

A quorum shall be two members, both being Independent Directors and one of whom shall be the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee.

The number of Audit Committee meetings and the attendance for the financial year under review are as set out below:

   Member Number of Audit Committee Attendance
     Meetings held during tenure in office 

 Iskandar Zurkanain bin Mohamed  5 5

 Kushairi bin Zaidel  5 5

 Leong Chen Nyen (Resigned on 23 May 2018)   2 2

   Low Koon Min (Appointed on 28 January 2019)   - -

Summary of Activities
The Audit Committee carried out the following activities:
 a) Reviewed internal audit reports presented and considered the findings on the Group’s operations through the 
  review of internal audit reports tabled and management responses thereof;
 b) Reviewed the Internal Audit Plans for the financial year;
 c) Reviewed the unaudited quarterly financial statements and the annual financial statements of the Company and 
  of the Group and recommending the same for approval by the Board upon being satisfied that the financial 
  reporting and disclosure requirements of the relevant authorities have been complied with; and
 d) Reviewed with the External Auditors the results of the audit, the audit report and the management letter, including 
  management’s response. 

Terms of Reference
The Audit Committee is governed by the following terms of reference:
 1) Membership
  The Committee shall be appointed by the Board from amongst the Directors and shall consist of not less than 
  three (3) members, majority of whom shall comprise Independent, Non-Executive Directors. All members of the 
  Committee are Non-Executive Directors. The members of the Audit Committee shall elect a Chairman from among 
  themselves who shall be an Independent Director. No Alternate Director shall be appointed as member of the 
  Audit Committee.

         At least one member of the Audit Committee: -
  - must be a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants or
  - if he is not a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, he must have at least 3 years working 
   experience and:
  - he must passed the examination specified in Part 1 of the First Schedule of the Accountants Act, 1967;
  - he must be a member of one of the associations of accountants specified in Part II of the First Schedule of the 
   Accountants Act 1967;  
  - must have a degree/master/doctorate in accounting or finance and at least 3 years post qualification 
   experience in accounting or finance;  
  - must have at least 7 years experience, being a chief financial officer of a corporation or having the function of 
   being primarily responsible for the management of the financial affairs of a corporation.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (continued)

  In the event of any vacancy in the Audit Committee resulting in a breach in the Bursa Securities Listing 
  Requirements, the vacancy must be filled within three (3) months.  

  The Audit Committee Chairman, Mr Leong Chen Nyen has resigned on 23 May 2018 due to health reason. 
   The Company has applied to Bursa Securities to comply with paragraph 15.09(1)(a),15.09(1)(c) and 15.19 of the 
  Listing Requirements and has been granted an extension till 22 February 2019 for the Company to comply. 
  On 28 January 2019, the Company has appointed Ms Low Koon Min as an ordinary member of the Audit Committee. 

2) Authority
  The Committee is authorized by the Board to investigate any activity within its terms of reference and shall have 
  unrestricted access to both the internal and external auditors and to all employees of the Group. The Committee 
  is also authorized by the Board to obtain external legal or other independent professional advice, if necessary.

3) Duties 
  The duties of the Committee shall be:
  - To recommend the appointment of external auditors and the audit fee;
  - To discuss with the external auditors, prior to the commencement of audit, the nature and scope of audit and to 
   ensure co-ordination of audit where more than one audit firm is involved;
  - To review the quarterly announcements to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and year end annual financial 
   statements before submission to the Board, focusing on:
   - going concern assumptions;
   -  compliance with accounting standards and regulatory requirement;.
   -   any changes in accounting policies and practices;
   - significant issues arising from the audit; and
   - major judgmental areas.
  - To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and final external audits, and any matters the 
   external auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of management, where necessary);   
  - To review the external auditors’ management letter and management’s response;
  - To oversee internal audit function by:
   - reviewing the adequacy of scope, functions and resources of the internal auditors and to ensure that it 
    has the necessary authority to carry out its work;
   - reviewing internal audit programmes;
   - ensuring coordination of external audit with internal audit; and
   - considering the major findings of internal audit investigations and management’s response, and ensure that 
    appropriate actions are taken on the recommendations of the internal audit function;  
  - To monitor related party transactions entered into by the Company and the Group, and to ensure that the 
   Directors report such transactions annually to shareholders via annual reports; and
  - To review the effectiveness of internal control systems.

4) Internal Audit Function
  The internal audit functions of the Group, as an integral and essential part of risk management process, have 
  been outsourced to a professional firm to maintain independence and attain efficiency in the review and 
  maintenance of the systems of control. The internal audit monitors compliance with policies and procedures and 
  the effectiveness of the internal control systems and highlight significant findings in respect of any non-compliance. 
  The annual audit plan is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee and the findings of the audits are 
  submitted to the Audit Committee for review.

5) Access and relationship with External Auditors 
  The committee shall have unlimited access to all information and documents relevant to its activity to the internal 
  and external auditors, and to senior management of the Company and its subsidiaries. The committee is also 
  authorized to take such independent professional advice as it considers necessary.

  In the performance of its duties and fulfilling its fiduciary responsibilities as determined by the Board and at all time 
  at the cost of the Company, the Committee:-
  - have authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference;
  - have the resources which are required to perform its duties, have full and unrestricted access to any 
   information pertaining to the Group;
  - have direct communication channel with external auditors and person(s) carrying out the internal audit function 
   or activity (if any);
  - be able to obtain independent professional or other advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders with 
   relevant experience and expertise if it considers this necessary;
  - be able to convene meetings with the external auditors, excluding the attendance of the executive members of 
   the Group, whenever deemed necessary; and
  - be able to report promptly to the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on any matters reported by it to the Board 
   of the Company, which has not been satisfactorily resolved in a breach of the Listing Requirements.    
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Introduction

The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance requires the Board of Directors (Board) to maintain a sound system of 
risk management and internal control to safeguard Shareholders’ interests and the Group’s assets. The Board of 
Kuantan Flour Mills Berhad (“KFMB”) is committed to maintaining a sound system of internal control and effective risk 
management as part of its ongoing efforts to practice good corporate governance.

This statement of risk management and internal control is prepared pursuant to paragraph 15.26(b) of the Main Market 
Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) and Practice Note 9 of Bursa Securities Malaysia Berhad (“Bursa Securities”).

The Board is pleased to provide the following statements that have been prepared accordingly.

Board’s Responsibilities

The Board recognizes the importance of good risk management practices and sound internal controls as a platform to 
good corporate governance. The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility in maintaining a sound, adequate and 
effective internal control and risk management system within the Group to ensure good corporate governance. 
The Group’s risk management and system of internal controls are structured to provide reasonable assurance to 
achieve the following:-

 - Effective and efficient operations;
 - Accuracy and timeliness of financial reporting;
 - Compliance with applicable laws and regulations;
 - An environment to promote integrity, good ethics and conduct; and
 - Regular reviews and update on risk management and system of internal controls.

However, due to inherent limitations in any internal control system, such system is designed to manage rather than 
eliminate risks that may impede the achievement of the Group’s business and corporate objectives. In this regard, 
the systems and procedures put in place are aimed at minimizing and managing risks. All aspects of financial, 
organizational, operational, compliance controls as well as risk management procedures are contained within this 
system of risk management and internal control.

Risk Management

Risk management is firmly embedded in the Group’s management system. The Board regards risk management as 
an integral part of the Group’s business operations. The Group had established a risk management process to identify, 
evaluate and manage significant risks faced by the Group and formulate appropriate measures to address those risks.

The responsibility for reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system has been delegated by 
the Board to the Audit Committee. In turn, the Audit Committee assesses the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control system and the governance system through independent reviews performed by the internal audit function, 
external auditors and Management.

Internal Control System

The Board is committed to maintain a strong control structure and environment for the proper conduct of the Group’s 
business operations. The key elements are as follows:-
 
 - Organization and definition of the management structure of Group including areas of responsibilities and 
  segregation of authorities and limits;
 - The Board and Audit Committee meet on a quarterly basis and on an ad-hoc basis where there is a need arise 
  to discuss matters raised by the management, on strategic and operational matters inclusive of potential risks 
  and control issues;
 - The Board had delegated the responsibilities to several committees and to the management of the Company to 
  implement and monitor designated tasks;
 - Performance reports are provided to the Board to facilitate review and monitoring of financial performance;
 - Proper guidelines within the Group for recruitment and selection, compensation and benefits, performance 
  management, training and development, employee communication and human resource administration;
 - Structured training and development programs conducted both internally and externally covering all levels of 
  staff to upgrade their knowledge, skill and competency;
 - Segregation of duties to reduce the scope for error and to prevent collision;
 - Health and safety policies and procedures are in place to assist in maintaining a safe working environment for 
  all employees; and
 - Sufficient insurance coverage on major asset classes is in place to ensure the Group’s assets are adequately 
  covered against risks that can result in material losses.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
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Internal Control System (continued)

The overall system of internal control was satisfactory and has not resulted in any material losses, contingencies or 
uncertainties that would require public disclosure. The Board continues to review and implement measures to strengthen 
the internal control environment of the Group.

Internal Audit Function 

The Group has the policy to outsource its internal audit function to external professional services firm, to assist the Board 
and Audit Committee in providing an independent assessment on the adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness of the 
Group’s internal control system.

The total cost incurred during the current financial year for internal audit function of the Group was RM63,000 
(2017: RM65,000).

During the financial year under review, the appointed Internal Auditors had conducted the followings:

- Internal control reviews on Finance and Accounts, Sales and Collection, Purchase and Payable and Human 
 Resource; and  
- Board Governance Policies and Terms of Reference for various Board’s Committees.             

ISO Audit Function

In July 2018, the Company has successfully obtained ISO 9001:2015.  A certification conducted and registered by an 
independent certification body on the management system for manufacturing of wheat flour and premixed flour for the 
Company.

Review of the Statement by External Auditors 

Pursuant to Paragraph 15.23 of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s Listing Requirements, the external auditors 
have reviewed this Statement for inclusion in the Annual Report of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2018. 
Based on their review, the external auditors have reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that 
causes them to believe that this Statement is inconsistent with their understanding of the processes adopted by the 
Board in reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the system of risk management and internal control of the Group.

The Board is of the view that the Company’s risk management and internal control system is operating effectively and 
adequately, in all material aspects, and have received the same assurance from the Financial Controller of the 
Company.  The Board confirms that the risk management process in identifying, evaluating and managing significant 
risks faced by the Company had been in place throughout the financial year ended 30 September 2018 and up to the 
date of approval of this statement.   

This statement is made in accordance with a Resolution of the Board of Directors dated 28 January 2019.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
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SUSTAINABILITY AND CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Kuantan Flour Mills Berhad (‘KFM’) acknowledges the importance of the business playing a vital role to bring about 
impactful sustainable change and its responsibility not only towards its stakeholders, but also to the wider community 
it operates. With a view of embedding sustainability elements in its work culture, KFM has been formulating strategies 
to foster on the sustainable use of scarce resources and the adoption of responsible business practices that include good 
governance, clear transparency and proper employee development.  

KFM is committed to play a positive role on its corporate responsibility initiatives to create and add value towards the 
environment, the work place, the community and the market place. Through this, KFM is able to incorporate good 
sustainability practices and initiatives into its day-to-day business operations and contribute to the betterment of the 
society and environment.  

THE ENVIRONMENT 

As the trend on depletion of earth’s natural resources increased and global climate change issues took place frequently, 
the environmental sustainability becomes paramount important. We recognize the potential environmental impacts of 
our business and are committed to operate in manner that respects the environment and stewards limited resources 
well. Hence, it is essential to embed environmental sustainability principles into our business operations and practices 
with the objective of safeguarding Shareholders’ interest whilst protecting the environment.  

KFM is committed to seek continuous improvements in our operations to minimize any negative impact on the 
environment. We will ensure that our business activities are conducted in compliance with the applicable environmental 
rules and regulations.   

The initiatives adopted by KFM to achieve a balance between economics, environmental and social considerations in 
its production processes and business operations are as below:    

 - Flour dust from production process are recycled and re-milling to ensure proper method of disposing production 
  waste from its process;   
 - To recycle used engine oil by disposing to registered waste oil company for recycling;
 - The efficient use of energy, water and raw materials in our operations;
 - The emphasis of work culture on “Go Green” policy at workplaces; and  
 - Responsible waste management and disposal.

THE WORKPLACE   
 
The Company believes that the wellbeing of its employees is important as employees are the backbone of any business 
and are central to the functioning of the business operations. They play a vital role in the success and sustainability of 
the Company.

KFM acknowledges the importance of enabling and maintaining a conducive and inclusive work environment for its 
employees. Hence, employees of different background, gender, age and ethnicity are given fair opportunities for career 
growth, fair performance evaluation and compensation programmes which commensurate with their rank and level of 
employment.

In fulfilling its responsibility as a caring employer, KFM places great emphasis on building long lasting relationships with 
its employees.

The following initiatives have been adopted by the Group:

1) Employees’ Welfare and Well-being   

 - Medical benefits.
 - Regularly updating of Human Resources policies and staff benefits.
 - Encouraging a healthy and building camaraderie among staff by providing support for social activities; and
 - Equal employment opportunity in terms of gender and ethnicity across all levels of employment.
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SUSTAINABILITY AND CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY (continued) 

2) Safe, Healthy and Conducive Work Environment  

 The Group places great emphasis on safety and health aspects of its employees while maintaining a comfortable 
 and conducive work environment through the following initiatives:

 - The setting up of Occupational Safety and Health Committee to initiate various health and safety 
  programmes to enhance employees’ awareness in work place;
 - Ensuring a safe workplace with 24 hours’ security surveillance;
 - Constant updating and promoting the awareness of safety precautions and health issues;
 - Train and hold individual employees accountable for their area of responsibility;
 - Employees are required to wear safety gears at work place to minimize work injuries;
 - Maintaining a workplace that is free from theft, violence, harassment, intimidation and other unsafe and 
  disruptive influences due to internal and external conditions; and
 - Periodically review the occupational safety and health practices on effectiveness and suitability.

3) Training and development 
  
 The Group recognizes the importance of human capital development to meet challenges, it continues to build and 
 upgrade its human resources to ensure that they can realize their full potential with the following efforts:

 - To engage in external training workshops for staff on both technical related skills and soft management skills;  
 - Participate in the international trade fairs/ exhibitions to broaden the knowledge base and exposure of its 
  employees to keep abreast on new developments in their respective field of expertise; and
 - New employees will participate in new employees’ orientation as well as on-site visit to get clear insights into the 
  Group’s operations.     

4) Recreational, Sports and Leisure Activities 
   
 The Group encourages its employees to participate in sports and recreational activities in order to cultivate a good 
 work-life balance culture. This would lead to a more productive workforce team and develop a caring, harmonious, 
 cohesive and vibrant team-spirit based working environment.

5) Retention, Talent Management and Succession Planning  

 The Group recognizes the importance of retaining key employees as one of the crucial elements for the success 
 of its business.  In line with this, competitive reward packages are in place and regularly reviewed to attract, retain 
 and motivate the right talents within the Group. The Group has always emphasized on fair equal employment 
 practices.

 Succession planning is put in place for critical positions to ensure sustainability in terms of continuous effective 
 and efficient operations within the Group and a healthy leadership pipeline.     

THE COMMUNITY 
   
The Group has initiated various activities in fulfilling its corporate responsibility on enhancing community sustainability 
such as by encouraging its employees to participate in voluntary works for charitable organizations and donations from 
the Company.  The Group is committed to provide continuous support to activities carried out by local charities and 
organizations.

The Group strive to build relationship on trust by way of social initiatives.  Other than contributions for the benefits of 
local community, the Group also creates and offers priority in job opportunity to local community.
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SUSTAINABILITY AND CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY (continued) 

THE MARKET PLACE

The Group has placed great emphasis to carry out activities with high ethical standards to promote responsible practices 
among its investors, suppliers and customers in order to achieve a sustainable development in market place.  

1) Investors  

 In order to establish trust and confidence of our shareholders, the Group strive to enhance corporate value via 
 various practices such as maximizing shareholders’ wealth through continuous efforts to achieve operational 
 excellence. The Group ensures that the disclosure and dissemination of all material information in a timely, open, 
 fair and transparent manner. The Group is committed to maintain a robust system of corporate governance and to 
 implement policies that promote ethical behavior and conducting business responsibility through high standards of 
 business ethics. Further, it also engages with its shareholders and investors through various channel of 
 communication such as general meetings of shareholders, accessibility in the public domain and regular updates on 
 our website.    

2) Suppliers  

 Reliable suppliers and vendors are essential for the smooth running of our business operations. It is important to 
 work closely with these suppliers and vendors to establish a long term working relationships and to realize mutual 
 growth via mutual trust. We also conduct site visits on selected suppliers, in-depth suppliers’ audit and practice 
 standard and equitable procedures in vendor evaluation to ensure that products and services supplied are in 
 accordance to our material requirements and standards. Further, KFM places great emphasis to engage with local 
 suppliers and purchase locally where possible in support of the local economy.    

3) Customers  

 The Group has continuously seek rooms for improvement in order to create value for its customers via competitive 
 pricing without compromising on quality of its products and services and also the interest of its shareholders.

 The above policy enabled the Group to develop a long-term business relationships and partnerships with its 
 customers.

 In achieving this, the Group has always initiated the followings:

 - Strict quality control from production, warehousing to prompt delivery of our products and after-sales service to its 
  customers;
 - To ensure operational excellence in order to reduce overall costs and share these benefits with its customers;  and
 - Regular customer surveys to obtain feedback from ordering process to delivery, product quality and services.     
.
CONCLUSION 

The Group will continue to use its best efforts to build sustainable practices on every aspect of its business where 
possible for the benefits of future generations and remain steadfast in achieving excellence in its corporate responsibility.          
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Kushairi bin Zaidel, is a Malaysian, male, aged 61, is currently the Independent, Non-Executive Chairman of the Group. 
As an Accountant, he started his professional service career in Sarawak as an Auditor with HRM/Arthur Anderson. 
He then embarked on his corporate career in 1988 when he joined a very established property development company, 
Borneo Development Sdn Bhd which is jointly owned by the State Government of Sarawak and Sabah. He left the 
corporate sector to pursue his entrepreneurship endeavours in 1995.

His formal education includes a Bachelor of Business (Accountancy) and other formal qualification namely Chartered 
Company Secretary. He is a member of the Australian Society of CPAs and the Malaysian Institute of Chartered 
Secretaries & Administrators.

He is presently the Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committees and he is an ordinary member in Audit 
Committee.

Encik Kushairi does not have any interest in the securities of the Company, neither does he has any family relationship 
with any director and/or substantial shareholder of the Company, nor conflict of interest with the Company.  He has not 
been convicted for any criminal offences within the past ten years.

Iskandar Zurkanain bin Mohamed, is a Malaysian, male, aged 45. He started his career in the defence industry in 1994 
with Zetro Sdn Bhd and later joined Bakti Udara Sdn Bhd as product accounts manager and involved in the sales of 
various military aircrafts and spares. He then embarked on his own career and started his own company Powerstar 
Sdn Bhd, McNa Enterprise Sdn Bhd and Stable Flex Solutions Sdn Bhd in which he continued in the business of sales 
of building materials and specialized military equipment to the armed forces

He is presently the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Encik Iskandar Zurkanain does not have any interest in the securities of the Company, neither does he has any family 
relationship with any director and/or substantial shareholder of the Company, nor conflict of interest with the Company.  
He has not been convicted for any criminal offences within the past ten years.

Low Koon Min, is a Malaysian, female, aged 47. She started her career as a Finance Manager in Mitsumi Electric Sdn 
Bhd, subsidiary of Mistsumi Electric Co Ltd, a public listed company in Japan. In 1998, Ms Low joined Mattel Southeast 
Asia Pte Ltd and moved to Mattel Southeast Asia (Regional Office) Sdn Bhd in 2002 as a Financial Specialist. Mattel is a 
toy company listed in Nasdaq Stock Exchange of United States of America. In 2011 Ms Low joined Le Ong & Partners, a 
legal firm, as an Office Manager. She is also the Company Secretary to IWB Consultancy Sdn Bhd, a Selangor state owned 
company to raise woman socio-economy and capability of women in leadership and entrepreneurship.

She is a member of Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and Malaysia Institute of Accountants. 

She is presently an ordinary member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee.

Ms Low Koon Min does not have any interest in the securities of the Company, neither does she has any family 
relationship with any director and/or substantial shareholder of the Company, nor conflict of interest with the Company.  
She has not been convicted for any criminal offences within the past ten years.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE 
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are required by the Companies Act, 2016 to prepare the financial statements for each financial year which 
have been made out in accordance with the applicable Financial Reporting Standards in Malaysia and to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the results and 
cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have;

 - adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
 - made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
 - ensured that all applicable accounting standards have been followed; and
 - prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as the Directors have reasonable expectation, 
  having made enquiries that the Group and the Company have   adequate resources to continue in operational 
  existence for the foreseeable future.

The Directors have responsibility for ensuring that the Company keeps accounting records which disclose with 
reasonable accuracy on the financial position of the Group and the Company and which enable them to ensure that the 
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2016.

The Directors have overall responsibilities for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets 
of the Group to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION 
as at 30 September 2018

1.  Audit Fees and Non-Audit Fees 

 The amount of audit and non-audit fees paid or payable to firms or corporations affiliated to the external auditors for 
 the financial year ended 30 September 2018 are as follows:

    Group  Company
 Details of fee RM’000 RM’000

 Statutory audit fees 54  48
 Non-audit fee 3 3

    57 51

 
2.  Material contracts 

 No material contracts (not being contracts entered in the ordinary course of business) have been entered into by the 
 Company and/or its subsidiaries which involved Directors’ and/or major shareholders’ interest, either still subsisting 
 at the end of the financial year ended 30 September 2018  or, if not then subsisting, entered into since the end of 
 the previous financial year.

3.  In compliance with the Bursa Securities Listing Requirements, the following additional information is 
 provided:-    

 During the financial year under review, there were no:
 - Utilization of proceeds;
 - Share buybacks;
 - American Depository Receipt / Global Depository Receipt Programme sponsored by the Company;
 - Sanctions and/or Penalties;
 - Profit Estimate, Forecast or Projection;
 - Profit Guarantee;
 - Recurrent Related Party Transaction of Revenue or Trading Nature;
 - Options, warrants or convertible securities exercised; and
 - Contract of loans between the Company and its subsidiaries that involve Directors’ or major shareholders’ 
  interest.
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The Directors submit their report to the members together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company for the financial year ended 30 September 2018.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company are flour milling and trading in its related products. The principal activities of the 
subsidiaries are described in Note 13 to the financial statements.

There was no significant change in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

Financial results
   Group Company
   RM  RM

Loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company  (2,903,054) (2,886,285)

Dividends

No dividends have been paid or declared since the end of the previous financial year. 

Reserves and provisions

There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions except as disclosed in the financial statements.

Shares and debentures

The Company did not issue any new shares or debentures during the financial year.

Share options

No options have been granted by the Company to any parties during the year to take up unissued shares of the 
Company.

No shares have been issued during the year by virtue of the exercise of any option to take up unissued shares of the 
Company. As of the end year, there were no unissued shares of the Company under options.

Directors

The Directors of the Company in office at any time during the year or since the end of the year are:

Kushairi bin Zaidel 
Iskandar Zurkanain bin Mohamed 
Leong Chen Nyen   (Resigned on 23 May 2018)

Directors’	benefits

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements subsisted to which the Company is a party, with the object 
or objects of enabling Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or 
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than 
a benefit included in the aggregate amount of remunerations received or due and receivable by the Directors shown in 
the financial statements or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company) by reason of a contract made by the 
Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in 
which the Director has a substantial financial interest.

Directors’ interests 

According to the register of directors’ shareholding under Section 59 of the Companies Act 2016, none of the Directors in 
office at the end of the year held any interests in shares in the Company and its related corporation during the year.
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Directors’ remunerations 

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

None of the Directors or Past Directors of the Company have received any other benefits otherwise than in cash from 
the Company during the year.

No payment has been paid to or payable to any third party in respect of the services provided to the Company by the 
Directors or Past Directors of the Company during the year.

Indemnifying	Directors,	Officers	or	Auditors

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the year, for any person who is 
or has been the Director, Officer or Auditor of the Company.

Other statutory information

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:

• to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance 
 for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate 
 allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and

• to ensure that any current assets, other than debts, which were unlikely to realise in the ordinary course of business 
 their values as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the Company had been written down to an 
 amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

• which would render the amounts written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for doubtful debts in the 
 financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; or

• which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the 
 Company misleading; or

• which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group 
 and of the Company misleading or inappropriate; or

• not otherwise dealt with in this report or financial statements which would render any amount stated in the  financial 
 statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

• any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which 
 secures the liability of any other person; or

• any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company, which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

No contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve 
months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or may affect the ability of the Group 
or of the Company to meet their obligations when they fall due.

In the opinion of the Directors:

• the loss of the Group’s and of the Company’s operations during the financial year were not substantially affected by 
 any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

• no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of the year 
 and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the loss of operations of the Group and of the 
 Company for the year in which this report is made.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued) 
for the year ended 30 September 2018

Subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

List of directors of subsidiaries

Pursuant to Section 253 of the Companies Act 2016, the list of Directors of the subsidiaries during the financial year and 
up to the date of this report, excluding Directors who are also Directors of the Company is Lee Chee Kiean.

Auditors’ remunerations

Total amounts paid to or receivable by the auditor as remunerations for their services from the Company and its 
subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Auditors

The retiring auditors, McMillan Woods Thomas, have indicated their willingness to be re-appointed.

In accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 8 January 2019.

Kushairi bin Zaidel
Director

Iskandar Zurkanain bin Mohamed
Director

Kuantan
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The Directors of Kuantan Flour Mills Berhad state that, in their opinion, the financial statements set out on pages 29 to 58 
are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards 
and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group 
and of the Company as at 30 September 2018 and of the results and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for 
the financial year then ended.  

In accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 8 January 2019. 

Kushairi bin Zaidel
Director

Iskandar Zurkanain bin Mohamed
Director

I, Goh Sheau Theng, being the Officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Kuantan Flour Mills Berhad, 
do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 29 to 58 are, in my opinion, 
correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the provisions 
of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Goh Sheau Theng

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed Goh Sheau Theng
At: Kuantan 

On: 8 January 2019

Before me:

Pesuruhjaya Sumpah Malaysia
No. C108
Chan Chiu Wah
41, Jalan Mahkota
25000 Kuantan
Pahang Darul Makmur



29

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 September 2018

                                   Group                                    Company 

  2018  2017 2018  2017 

 Note RM RM RM RM
      

Revenue 4 39,006,965 7,521,075 39,006,965 7,521,075
Cost of sales 5 (38,719,849) (10,825,592) (38,719,849) (10,825,592)

Gross profit/(loss)  287,116 (3,304,517) 287,116 (3,304,517)
Other operating income  4,493 4,015 4,493 4,015
Administrative expenses  (1,762,410) (8,369,419) (1,744,107) (8,361,152)
Selling expenses  (1,433,787) (589,489) (1,433,787) (589,489)
Finance costs 6 - (928) - (928)

Loss before tax 7 (2,904,588) (12,260,338) (2,886,285) (12,252,071)
Taxation 10 - - - -

Net loss for the year, 
  representing total 
  comprehensive loss for the year  (2,904,588) (12,260,338) (2,886,285) (12,252,071)
      
  
Attributable to:      
Equity holders of the Company  (2,903,054) (12,259,715) (2,886,285) (12,252,071)
Non-controlling interests  (1,534) (623) - -

  (2,904,588) (12,260,338) (2,886,285) (12,252,071)
      
  
Loss per share 
  attributable to equity holders 
  of the Company (sen)      
Basic and Diluted 11 (4.25) (17.97) - -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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                                   Group                                    Company 

   2018  2017 2018  2017
 Note RM RM RM RM
      

Non current assets      

Property, plant and equipment 12 4,610,045 5,545,499 4,610,045 5,545,499
Investments in subsidiaries 13 - - 5,109 5,109
Other investment 14 249,139 364,686 249,139 364,686

  4,859,184 5,910,185 4,864,293 5,915,294

Current assets      
Inventories 15 4,075,604 4,894,519 4,075,604 4,894,519
Receivables, deposits and prepayments 16 5,298,038 4,105,135 5,336,809 4,135,376
Deposits, cash and bank balances 17 1,375,657 334,117 1,373,611 330,065

  10,749,299 9,333,771 10,786,024 9,359,960

Less: Current liabilities      
Payables 18 41,566,442 38,296,777 41,547,838 38,285,940
Current tax liabilities  14,209 14,759 14,209 14,759

  41,580,651 38,311,536 41,562,047 38,300,699

Net current liabilities  (30,831,352) (28,977,765) (30,776,023) (28,940,739)

Net liabilities  (25,972,168) (23,067,580) (25,911,730) (23,025,445)

Equity attributable to 

owners of the Company      
Share capital 19 3,442,279 3,442,279 3,442,279 3,442,279
Accumulated losses  (29,414,705) (26,511,651) (29,354,009) (26,467,724)

Shareholders’ equity  (25,972,426) (23,069,372) (25,911,730) (23,025,445)

Non-controlling interests  258 1,792 - -

Total equity  (25,972,168) (23,067,580) (25,911,730) (23,025,445)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 30 September 2018

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

                                                                             Non  

       controlling Total 

                    Attributable to owners of the Company  interest equity

  Share Share Accumulated      

  capital  premium  losses  Total

Group  (Note 19) 

  RM RM RM RM RM RM 

At 30 September 2016  3,411,454 30,825 (14,251,936) (10,809,657) 2,415 (10,807,242)
Transfer pursuant to 
  Companies Act 2016   30,825 (30,825) - - - -
Total comprehensive loss  - - (12,259,715) (12,259,715) (623) (12,260,338)

At 30 September 2017  3,442,279 - (26,511,651) (23,069,372) 1,792 (23,067,580)
       

At 30 September 2017  3,442,279 - (26,511,651) (23,069,372) 1,792 (23,067,580)

Total comprehensive loss  - - (2,903,054) (2,903,054) (1,534) (2,904,588)

At 30 September 2018  3,442,279 - (29,414,705) (25,972,426) 258 (25,972,168)

  Share Share Accumulated     

  capital  premium  losses  Total

Company  (Note 19) 

  RM RM RM RM 

At 30 September 2016  3,411,454 30,825 (14,215,653) (10,773,374)
Transfer pursuant to 
  Companies Act 2016  30,825 (30,825) - -
Total comprehensive loss  - - (12,252,071) (12,252,071)

At 30 September 2017  3,442,279 - (26,467,724) (23,025,445)
     

At 30 September 2017  3,442,279 - (26,467,724) (23,025,445)

Total comprehensive loss  - - (2,886,285) (2,886,285)

At 30 September 2018  3,442,279 - (29,354,009) (25,911,730)
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 30 September 2018

                                   Group                                    Company    

  2018  2017 2018  2017 

 Note RM RM RM RM
      

Operating activities      

Loss before tax  (2,904,588) (12,260,338) (2,886,285) (12,252,071)
Adjustments for:      
Depreciation for property, 
  plant and equipment  819,356 1,123,357 819,356 1,122,998
Loss on disposal of property, 
  plant and equipment  - 37,494 - 37,494
Property, plant and equipment 
  written off  254 1,600 254 1,545
Impairment loss for property, 
  plant and equipment  228,129 - 228,129 -
Unrealised foreign exchange 
  loss  - 124,210 - 124,210
Impairment loss on trade 
  receivables  - 17,760 - 17,760
Interest income  (4,095) (3,099) (4,095) (3,099)
Impairment for unquoted 
  investment  115,547 112,465 115,547 112,465
Interest expense  - 928 - 928

Operating cash flows before         
  changes in working capital  (1,745,397) (10,845,623) (1,727,094) (10,837,770)
Changes in working capital:      
-  inventories  818,915 (4,513,155) 818,915 (4,513,155)
-  receivables, deposits and 
  prepayments  (1,192,903) (3,861,966) (1,201,433) (3,865,934)
-  payables  3,269,665 19,180,539 3,261,898 19,175,821

Cash flows from/(used in) operations  1,150,280 (40,205) 1,152,286 (41,038)
Interest paid  - (928) - (928)
Tax paid  (550) (50) (550) (50)
Tax refunded  - 1,200 - 1,200

Net cash flows from/(used in) 
  operating activities  1,149,730 (39,983) 1,151,736 (40,816)
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                               Group                                    Company    

  2018  2017 2018  2017 

 Note RM RM RM RM
      

Investing activities      
Purchase of property, 
  plant and equipment  (112,285) (120,753) (112,285) (120,753)
Proceeds from disposal of property, 
  plant and equipment  - 92,660 - 92,660
Interest received  4,095 3,099 4,095 3,099

Net cash flows used in 
  investing activities  (108,190) (24,994) (108,190) (24,994)
      
Financing activities      
Repayment of obligations 
  under finance leases  - (34,582) - (34,582)

Net cash flows used in 
  financing activities  - (34,582) - (34,582)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and 
  cash equivalents  1,041,540 (99,559) 1,043,546 (100,392)
      
Cash and cash equivalents     
- at start of the financial year  334,117 433,676 330,065 430,457

- at end of the financial year 17 1,375,657 334,117 1,373,611 330,065

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 September 2018

1 General information

 The principal activities of the Company are flour milling and trading of its related products. The principal activities of 
 the subsidiaries are described in Note 13 to the financial statements.

 The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and is listed on the 
 Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. 

 The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is located at Kawasan Lembaga 
 Pelabuhan Kuantan, KM25, Jalan Kuantan/Kemaman, Tanjung Gelang, P.O. Box 387, 25740 Kuantan, Pahang 
 Darul Makmur.

 The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia.

2 Basis of preparation 

 (a) The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost 
  convention, unless otherwise indicated in the individual policy statements in Note 3 to the financial statements 
  and comply with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and 
  the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia.

 (b) The financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Group and the Company are 
  going concerns. The Group and the Company incurred net losses during the financial year ended 
  30 September 2018 of RM2,904,588 and RM2,886,285 respectively and, as at the date, the Group and 
  the Company had net current liabilities of RM30,831,352 and RM30,776,023 respectively and negative 
  shareholders’ funds of RM25,972,426 and RM25,911,730 respectively.

  The Company had submitted its revised Proposed Regularisation Plan (“PRP”) to Bursa Securities for 
  approval on 07 August 2018 (Note 29).

  The going concern assumption is highly dependent upon successful approval and implementation of the 
  Regularisation Plan and the ability of the Group and the Company to generate sufficient cash flows to fulfil 
  their obligation as and when fall due.

3	 Significant	accounting	policies	

 (a) Basis of consolidation 

  The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries 
  as at the reporting date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated 
  financial statements are prepared for the same reporting date as of the Company. Consistent accounting 
  policies are applied to like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

  All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group 
  transactions are eliminated in full.

  Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. Identifiable assets acquired 
  and liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition 
  date. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and 
  the services are received.

  Any excess of the cost of business combination over the Group’s share in the net fair value of the acquired 
  subsidiary’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is recorded as goodwill on the statement of 
  financial position. Any excess of the Group’s share in the net fair value of the acquired subsidiary’s identifiable 
  assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of business combination is recognised as income in 
  profit or loss on the date of acquisition. When the Group acquires a business, embedded derivatives separated 
  from the host contract by the acquiree are reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination results 
  in a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be 
  required under the contract.

  Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, 
  and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. 
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3	 Significant	accounting	policies (continued)

 (b) Non-controlling interests

  Non-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to owners of 
  the Company, and is presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within 
  equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from equity attributable to owners of the 
  Company.

  Changes in the Company owners’ ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are 
  accounted for as equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and 
  non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. 
  Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the 
  consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the parent.

 (c) Property, plant and equipment 

  All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant and 
  equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
  the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

  Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
  any accumulated impairment losses.

  Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

  Buildings, factory and civil works  20 to 50 years
  Plant and machinery   10 to 30 years
  Equipment and fixtures   5 years
  Motor vehicles   5 to 10 years

  The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in 
  circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

  The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end, and adjusted 
  prospectively, if appropriate.

  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
  are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or 
  loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

	 (d)	 Impairment	of	non-financial	assets

  The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.  
  If any such indication exists, or when an annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Group 
  makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.

  An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 
  For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
  separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units (“CGU”)).

  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are 
  discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
  time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
  recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in 
  respect of a CGU or groups of CGUs are to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit or groups.

  Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

  An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised 
  impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised impairment loss is 
  reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount 
  since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased 
  to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, 
  net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit 
  or loss. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 30 September 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 30 September 2018

3	 Significant	accounting	policies (continued)

 (e) Subsidiaries

  The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable return from its 
  involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

  In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less 
  impairment losses.

 (f) Financial assets

  Financial assets are recognised in the statements of financial position when, and only when, the Group and 
  the Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

  When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial 
  assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable to transaction costs.

  The Group and the Company determine the classification of their financial assets at initial recognition, and 
  the categories include financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity 
  investments and available-for-sale financial assets.

  (i)	 Financial	assets	at	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss

   Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss if they are held for 
   trading or are designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial assets held for trading are derivatives
   (including separated embedded derivatives) or financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of 
   selling in the near term.

   Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. 
   Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or net 
   losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss do not include exchange differences, interest 
   and dividend income. Exchange differences, interest and dividend income on financial assets at fair 
   value through profit or loss are recognised separately in profit or loss as part of other losses or other income.

   Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss could be presented as current or non-current. 
   Financial assets that are held primarily for trading purposes are presented as current whereas financial 
   assets that are not held primarily for trading purposes are presented as current or non-current based on 
   the settlement date.

   The Group and the Company did not have any financial assets at fair value through profit or loss during 
   the financial year ended 30 September 2018.
 
  (ii) Loans and receivables

   Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified 
   as loans and receivables.

   Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the 
   effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and 
   receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.

   Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having maturity dates later than 
   12 months after the reporting date which are classified as non-current.
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3	 Significant	accounting	policies (continued)

 (f) Financial assets (continued)

  (iii) Held to maturity investments

   Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity 
   when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold the investment to maturity.

   Subsequent to initial recognition, held to maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the 
   effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the held-to-maturity 
   investments are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.

   Held to maturity investments are classified as non-current assets, except for those having maturity within 
   12 months after the reporting date which are classified as current.

   The Group and the Company did not have any held to maturity investments during the financial year 
   ended 30 September 2018.

  (iv)	Available	for	sale	financial	assets

   Available-for-sale financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified in any of the 
   three preceding categories.

   After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses 
   from changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income, except 
   that impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments and interest calculated 
   using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative gain or loss previously 
    recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification 
   adjustment when the financial asset is derecognised. Interest income calculated using the effective interest 
   method is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on an available-for-sale equity instrument are recognised 
   in profit or loss when the Group’s and the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

   Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be measured reliably are measured at cost less 
   impairment loss.

   Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets unless they are expected to be 
   realised within 12 months after the reporting date.

   A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has 
   expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the difference between the carrying amount 
   and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in 
   other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

   Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets 
   within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned. 
   All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade date 
   i.e., the date that the Group and the Company commit to purchase or sell the asset.

 (g)	 Impairment	of	financial	assets

  The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a 
  financial asset is impaired.
 
  (i)	 Trade	and	other	receivables	and	other	financial	assets	carried	at	amortised	cost

   To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has been 
   incurred, the Group and the Company consider factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant 
   financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments. For certain categories of 
   financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are 
   subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis based on similar risk characteristics.  Objective 
   evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s and the Company’s past 
   experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past 
   the average credit period and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate 
   with default on receivables.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 30 September 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 30 September 2018

3	 Significant	accounting	policies (continued)

 (g)	 Impairment	of	financial	assets (continued)

  (i)	 Trade	and	other	receivables	and	other	financial	assets	carried	at	amortised	cost (continued)

   If any such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the 
   asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial 
   asset’s original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

   The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets 
   with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an 
   allowance account. When a trade receivable becomes uncollectible, it is written off against the impairment 
   account.

   If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
   objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 
   impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its 
   amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

  (ii)	 Available	for	sale	financial	assets

   Significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost, significant financial difficulties of the issuer or 
   obligor, and the disappearance of an active trading market are considerations to determine whether there 
   is objective evidence that investment securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are impaired.

   If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost 
   (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss 
   previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss.

   Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments are not reversed in profit or loss in the 
   subsequent periods. Increase in fair value, if any, subsequent to impairment loss is recognised in other 
   comprehensive income. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently 
   reversed in profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an 
   event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss in profit or loss.
 
 (h) Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and highly liquid 
  investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk 
  of changes in value.

 (i) Inventories 

  Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
  their present location and conditions are accounted for as follows:
 
  - raw material: purchase costs on weighted average basis
  - finished goods and work-in-progress: costs of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing 
   overheads based on normal operating capacity. These costs are assigned on a weighted average basis.
 
  Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of 
  completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

 (j) Provisions

  Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
  event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation and the 
  amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

  Provision are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer 
  probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is 
  reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax 
  rate reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
  provision due to the passage of the time is recognised as a finance cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 30 September 2018

3	 Significant	accounting	policies (continued)

 (k) Fair value measurement

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
  transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly 
  observable or estimated using a valuation technique. The measurement assumes that the transaction takes 
  place either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market. 
  For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market’s participant’s ability to 
  generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
  participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

  For financial reporting purposes, the fair value measurements are analysed into level 1 to level 3 as follows:-

  Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or, liability that the entity can 
  access at the measurement date;

  Level 2: Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or 
  liability, either directly or indirectly; and

  Level 3: Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

  The transfer of fair value between levels is determined as of the date of the event or change in circumstances 
  that caused the transfer.

 (l) Financial liabilities 

  (i)	 Financial	liabilities	at	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss

   Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into 
   and the definitions of a financial liability.

   Financial liabilities, within the scope of MFRS 139, are recognised in the statement of financial position 
   when, and only when, the Group and the Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the 
   financial instrument. Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
   or loss or other financial liabilities.

   Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
   liabilities designated upon initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss.

   Financial liabilities held for trading include derivatives entered into by the Group and the Company that do 
   not meet the hedge accounting criteria. Derivative liabilities are initially measured at fair value and 
   subsequently stated at fair value, with any resultant gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. Net gains 
   or losses on derivatives include exchange differences.

   The Group and the Company have not designated any financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

  (ii)	 Other	financial	liabilities

   The Group’s and the Company’s other financial liabilities include trade payables and other payables.

   Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs 
   and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
 
   For other financial liabilities, gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are 
   recognised, and through the amortisation process.
 
   A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is extinguished when an existing 
   financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms 
   of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a 
   derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the 
   respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 30 September 2018

3	 Significant	accounting	policies (continued)

 (m) Leases

  Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the 
  leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased or, if lower, at the present 
  value of  the minimum lease payments. Any initial direct costs are also added to the amount capitalised. Lease 
  payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a 
  constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged to profit or loss. 
  Contingent rents, if any, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

  Leased assets are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable 
  certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the 
  shorter of the estimated useful life and the lease term.

  Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease 
  term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental expense 
  over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

 (n) Revenue 

  Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 
  revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
  receivable.

  (i) Sale of goods

   Revenue from sale of goods is recognised upon transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership of the 
   goods to the customer. Revenue is not recognised to the extent where there are significant uncertainties 
   regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or possible return of goods.

  (ii) Dividend income

   Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established. 

  (iii) Interest income

   Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

 (o)	 Employee	benefits

  (i)	 Short	term	benefits

   Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contribution are recognised as an expense in the year in 
   which the associated services are rendered by employees. Short term accumulating compensated 
   absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when services are rendered by employees that 
   increase their entitlement to future compensated absences. Short term non-accumulating compensated 
   absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences occur.

 	 (ii)	 Defined	contribution	plans
 
   The Group participates in the national pension scheme as defined by law of the country in which it has 
   operations. The Group makes contribution to the Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”) in Malaysia, a defined 
   contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined pension schemes are recognised as an expense in 
   the period in which the related service is performed.

  (iii) Employee leave entitlement

   Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised as a liability when they accrue to the employees. 
   The estimated liability for leave is recognised for services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 30 September 2018

3	 Significant	accounting	policies (continued)

 (p) Income taxes

  (i) Current tax

   Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
   taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
   substantively enacted by the reporting date.

   Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognised 
   outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
 
  (ii) Deferred tax

   Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between 
   the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

   Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences.

   Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax 
   credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
   which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax 
   losses can be utilised.

   The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
   that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
   tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are 
   recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 
   assets to be utilised.  

   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when 
   the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
   substantively enacted at the reporting date.

   Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
   current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 
   and the same taxation authority.

 (q) Share capital

  Ordinary shares are equity instruments. Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly 
  attributable incremental transaction costs. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary 
  shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared.

 (r) Contingencies

  A contingent liability or asset is a possible obligation or rights that arises from past events and whose existence 
  will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future event(s) not wholly within the 
  control of the Group.

  Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the statements of financial positions of the Group.

 (s) Foreign currency

  (i) Functional and presentation currency

   The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency of the 
   primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘’the functional currency’’). The consolidated 
   financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is also the Company’s functional 
   currency.



4 Revenue 

                                                                                                                               Group and Company

          2018 2017
          RM RM

 Sales of flour and related products    39,006,965 7,521,075

5 Cost of sales 

                                                                                                                               Group and Company

          2018 2017
          RM RM
 Cost of inventories sold (including depreciation of            
 RM751,635 (2017: RM1,072,822)    38,719,849 10,825,592

6 Finance costs 

                                                                                                                               Group and Company

          2018 2017
          RM RM

 Hire purchase    - 928
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 30 September 2018

3	 Significant	accounting	policies (continued)

 (s) Foreign currency (continued)

  (ii) Foreign currency transactions

   Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the functional currency of the Company and its 
   subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates 
   approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
   currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary items 
   denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange 
   rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies 
   measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was 
   determined.

   Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the 
   reporting date are recognised in profit or loss for the period.

   Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in 
   profit or loss for the period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 30 September 2018

7 Loss before tax
 
 The following items have been charged/(credited) in arriving at loss before tax: 

                                      Group                                      Company 

   2018  2017 2018  2017
  RM RM RM RM
      

 Auditors’ remuneration      
 - current year  54,000 54,000 48,000 48,000
 - over accrued previous year  - (500) - -
 - other services  3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
 Non-executive directors’ 
   remuneration (Note 9)  96,000 102,000 96,000 102,000
 Depreciation of property,  
   plant and equipment  819,356 1,123,357 819,356 1,122,998
 Loss on disposal of property, 
   plant and equipment  - 37,494 - 37,494
 Property, plant and equipment 
   written off  254 1,600 254 1,545
 Employee benefits expense (Note 8)  3,241,659 2,168,381 3,241,659 2,168,381
 Rental of land and building  522,264 420,363 522,264 420,363
 Rental of software  8,250 - 8,250 -
 Impairment loss on property, 
   plant and equipment  228,129 - 228,129 -
 Impairment loss on trade receivables  - 17,760 - 17,760
 Impairment for unquoted investment  115,547 112,465 115,547 112,465
 Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss:      
 - Unrealised  (44,004) 124,210 (44,004) 124,210
 Interest - fixed deposits  (4,095) (3,099) (4,095) (3,099)

8	 Employee	benefits	expense	
                                                                                                                               Group and Company

          2018 2017 
          RM RM

 Wages and salaries    2,602,001 1,807,200
 Social security contributions    43,837 28,678
 Pension costs - defined contribution plan    330,771 270,478
 Other staff related expenses    265,050 62,025

          3,241,659 2,168,381
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 30 September 2018

9 Directors’ remuneration 

                                                                                                                              Group and Company

          2018 2017
          RM RM
 Non - executive Directors (Note 7)      
 -  Fees       96,000 102,000

 
 The number of directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the year within the following bands is 
 analysed below:
            
                                                                                                                                                    Number of Directors

          2018 2017
 Non-executive directors:      
 Up to RM50,000    3 3

10 Taxation

 (a) Tax charge for the year

  There is no tax charge as the Group and the Company are in tax loss position.

 (b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense

 
  The explanation on the difference in the tax on the Group’s and Company’s loss and the theoretical amount 
  that would arise using the statutory income tax rate of Malaysia is as follows:

                                   Group                                    Company 

     2018  2017 2018  2017
    RM RM RM RM
 

 Loss before tax  (2,904,588) (12,260,338) (2,886,285) (12,252,071)
       

 Tax calculated at the Malaysian 
   tax rate of 24% (2017: 24%)  (697,100) (2,942,481) (692,708) (2,940,497)
 Tax effect of:      
 - expenses not deductible for 
   tax purposes  131,471 657,441 127,079 655,457
 - income not taxable  (40,371) - (40,371) -
 - deferred tax assets not 
   recognised in respect of current 
   year tax losses and deductible 
   temporary differences 
   (capital allowance)  606,000 2,285,040 606,000 2,285,040
 
    - - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 30 September 2018

10 Taxation (continued)

 (c) Deferred tax

 

  Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items as they arose in companies 
  with recent history of losses.
                                   Group                                    Company 

    2018  2017 2018  2017
    RM RM RM RM
 

  Unused tax losses  70,228,447 68,528,447 65,000,000 63,300,000
  Deductible temporary differences 
  - unutilised capital allowance  6,125,000 5,300,000 6,125,000 5,300,000
  Unutilised reinvestment                   
    allowances  9,972,944 9,972,944 9,972,944 9,972,944

  The unused tax losses and unutilised reinvestment allowance of the Group are available for indefinitely for 
  offsetting against future taxable profits of the respective entities within the Group, subject to no substantial 
  change in shareholdings of those entities under the Income Tax Act, 1967 and the guidelines issued by the tax 
  authority.

  During the recent Budget 2019, the period of offsetting for unused tax losses and unutilised capital allowance 
  may be changed and limited to 7 years only.

11 Loss per share

 Basic and diluted

 Basic and diluted loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year, net of tax attributable to 
 owners of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year. 

                                                                                                                                            Group

          2018  2017

 Loss net of tax attributable to owners of the Company used in      
   the computation of basic and diluted loss per share (RM)   (2,903,054)  (12,259,715)
 Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic loss per    
   share computation    68,229,084  68,229,084
 Basic and diluted loss per share (sen)    (4.25)  (17.97)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 30 September 2018

12 Property, plant and equipment

   Buildings, 

  factory and  Plant and Equipment  Motor

	 	 civil	works		 machinery		 and	fixtures	 	vehicles	 Total
 Group RM  RM  RM  RM  RM 

 Cost     

 At 30 September 2016 9,796,345 37,098,465 4,401,999 754,892 52,051,701
 Addition - 61,547 59,206 - 120,753
 Disposal - - - (554,048) (554,048)
 Written off - - (397,921) (32,508) (430,429)

 At 30 September 2017 9,796,345 37,160,012 4,063,284 168,336 51,187,977
 Addition - 44,454 67,831 - 112,285

 Written off - - (11,050) - (11,050)

 At 30 September 2018 9,796,345 37,204,466 4,120,065 168,336 51,289,212

 

 Accumulated depreciation and 

   Impairment losses     
 At 30 September 2016 8,116,734 32,498,859 4,162,224 594,027 45,371,844
 Charge for the year 199,863 823,187 95,105 5,202 1,123,357
 Written off - - (397,866) (30,963) (428,829)
 Disposal - - - (423,894) (423,894)

 At 30 September 2017 8,316,597 33,322,046 3,859,463 144,372 45,642,478
 Charge for the year 224,314 510,959 77,890 6,193 819,356

 Written off - - (10,796) - (10,796)

 Impairment losses recognised - 228,129 - - 228,129

 At 30 September 2018 8,540,911 34,061,134 3,926,557 150,565 46,679,167

     
 Net carrying amount     
 At 30 September 2017 1,479,748 3,837,966 203,821 23,964 5,545,499

 At 30 September 2018 1,255,434 3,143,332 193,508 17,771 4,610,045



47

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 30 September 2018

12 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

   Buildings, 

  factory and  Plant and Equipment  Motor

	 	 civil	works		 machinery		 and	fixtures	 	vehicles	 Total
 Company RM  RM  RM  RM  RM 

 Cost     
 At 30 September 2016 9,796,345 37,098,465 4,004,078 754,892 51,653,780
 Additions - 61,547 59,206 - 120,753
 Written off - - - (32,508) (32,508)
 Disposal - - - (554,048) (554,048)

 At 30 September 2017 9,796,345 37,160,012 4,063,284 168,336 51,187,977
 Additions - 44,454 67,831 - 112,285

 Written off - - (11,050) - (11,050)

 At 30 September 2018 9,796,345 37,204,466 4,120,065 168,336 51,289,212

 Accumulated depreciation and 

   Impairment losses     

 At September 2016 8,116,734 32,498,859 3,764,717 594,027 44,974,337
 Charge for the year 199,863 823,187 94,746 5,202 1,122,998
 Written off - - - (30,963) (30,963)
 Disposal - - - (423,894) (423,894)
 
 At 30 September 2017 8,316,597 33,322,046 3,859,463 144,372 45,642,478
 Charge for the year 224,314 510,959 77,890 6,193 819,356

 Written off - - (10,796) - (10,796)

 Impairment losses recognised - 228,129 - - 228,129

 
 At 30 September 2018 8,540,911 34,061,134 3,926,557 150,565 46,679,167

     
 Net carrying amount     
 At 30 September 2017 1,479,748 3,837,966 203,821 23,964 5,545,499

 At 30 September 2018 1,255,434 3,143,332 193,508 17,771 4,610,045

 The factory is a flour mill constructed on a land leased by Novation Agreement between Kuantan Port Authority, 
 Kuantan Port Consortium Sdn Bhd and the Company. The total rental commitment payable under the lease as at 
 the year-end is as follows:

                                                                                                                              Group and Company

          2018 2017 
          RM RM
 
 Not later than 1 year    381,462 354,866
 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years    1,629,913 1,581,847
 Later than 5 years    1,954,608 2,384,136
 
          3,965,983 4,320,849
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13 Investments in subsidiaries 

                                                                                                                                        Company

          2018 2017 
          RM RM

 Unquoted shares, at cost    1,346,108 1,346,108
 Less: Accumulated impairment losses    (1,340,999) (1,340,999)

          5,109 5,109

 Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

                       Proportion (%) of 

                      ownership interest 

  Country of 2018 2017
 Name of Company incorporation %  % Principal activities

 KFM Transport Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 100 Dormant
 KFM Marketing Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 100 Dormant
 KFM Ventures Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 100 Dormant
 KFM Biotechnology Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 100 Dormant
 KFM Industries Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 100 Dormant
 KFM Trading Sdn Bhd Malaysia 51 51 Dormant

 All subsidiaries are audited by McMillan Woods Thomas.

14 Other investment 

                                                                                                                               Group and Company

          2018 2017
          RM RM
 Available-for-sale financial asset      
 Unquoted shares, at cost    1,735,501 1,735,501
 Impairment loss    (1,486,362) (1,370,815)

          249,139 364,686

15 Inventories

                                                                                                                              Group and Company

          2018 2017
          RM RM
 Cost       
 Raw material    3,444,800 4,370,442
 Finished goods    50,581 47,695
 Consumables    412,457 349,390

          3,907,838 4,767,527
 Net realisable value      
 Finished goods    167,766 126,992

          4,075,604 4,894,519
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16 Receivables, deposits and prepayments 

                                  Group                                Company 

    2018 2017 2018 2017 
   RM   RM RM RM

 Trade receivables - third parties  5,237,595 1,042,035 5,094,397 898,837
 Less: Impairment loss  (335,971) (335,971) (192,775) (192,775)

   4,901,624 706,064 4,901,622 706,062

 Other receivables  555,293 909,970 556,381 909,970
 Less: Impairment loss  (500,000) (500,000) (500,000) (500,000)

   55,293 409,970 56,381 409,970
 Amounts due from  subsidiaries  - - 37,685 30,243
 Advance for purchase  68,232 2,860,292 68,232 2,860,292
 Deposits  58,281 40,876 58,281 40,876
 Prepayments  214,608 87,933 214,608 87,933

   5,298,038 4,105,135 5,336,809 4,135,376

 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 7 to 90 days (2017: 7 to 90 days) terms. 
 They are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition.
 
 Ageing analysis of trade receivables

 The ageing analysis of the Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables are as follows: 

                                  Group                                Company 

    2018 2017 2018 2017 
   RM   RM RM RM

 Neither past due nor impaired   4,563,677 707,318 4,563,677 707,318

 1 to 30 days past due not impaired  299,614 (14,685) 299,614 (14,685)
 31 to 60 days past due not impaired  1,399 13,001 1,399 13,001
 61 to 90 days past due not impaired  (3,222) (3,130) (3,222) (3,130)
 More than 90 days past due not impaired  40,156 3,560 40,154 3,558

   337,947 (1,254) 337,945 (1,256)
 Impaired  335,971 335,971 192,775 192,775

   5,237,595 1,042,035 5,094,397 898,837

 Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

 Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good payment 
 records with the Group.

 None of the Group’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated during 
 the financial year.
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16 Receivables, deposits and prepayments (continued) 

 Receivables that are past due but not impaired

 The Group and the Company have trade receivables amounting to RM40,156 (2017: RM3,560) and RM40,154 
 (2017: RM3,558) respectively that are past due at reporting date but not impaired.

 The Group’s primary exposure to credit risk arises through its trade receivables. The Group’s trading terms with 
 its customers are mainly on credit. The credit period is generally between 7 to 90 days. Each customer has a 
 maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit 
 control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. 
 The Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers. There is no significant 
 concentration of credit risk. As at 30 September 2018, the Directors of the Company are of the opinion that no 
 allowance for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in 
 the credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

 Trade receivables that are impaired

 The Group and the Company’s trade receivables that are impaired at the reporting date and the movement of the 
 allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:

                                  Group                                Company 

                     Individually impaired

    2018 2017 2018 2017 
   RM   RM RM RM

 Trade receivables       
 - nominal amount  335,971 335,971 192,775 192,775
 Less: Impairment losses  (335,971) (335,971) (192,775) (192,775)

   - - -  -

 Movement in allowance accounts: 

                                  Group                                Company 

    2018 2017 2018 2017 
   RM   RM RM RM

 At start of the financial year  335,971 318,211 192,775 175,015
 Charge for the financial year  - 17,760 - 17,760

 At end of the financial year  335,971 335,971 192,775 192,775

 Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the reporting date relate to debtors that are in 
 significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured by any 
 collateral or credit enhancements.

 Other receivable that is impaired

 At the reporting date, the Company has provided an allowance of RM500,000 (2017: RM500,000) for impairment 
 of the amount due from a third party with a nominal amount of RM500,000 (2017: RM500,000).

 There has been no movement in this allowance account for the financial year ended 30 September 2018 
 (2017: RM500,000).
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17   Cash and cash equivalents 

                                  Group                                Company 

    2018 2017 2018 2017 
   RM   RM RM RM

 Deposits with licensed banks  134,095 130,000 134,095 130,000
 Cash and bank balances  1,241,562 204,117 1,239,516 200,065

 Deposits, cash and bank balances  1,375,657 334,117 1,373,611 330,065
 Deposits pledged as security  (134,095) (130,000) (134,095) (130,000)

   1,241,562 204,117 1,239,516 200,065

 The effective weighted average interest rate of the deposits at the end of the year was as follows:

                                                                                                                              Group and Company

          2018 2017
          % %

 Deposits with licensed banks    3.05 3.15 
   

18 Payables 

                                  Group                                Company 

    2018 2017 2018 2017 
   RM   RM RM RM

 Trade payables  32,367,792 25,411,732 32,356,603 25,400,543
 Other payables  6,778,810 11,421,977 6,778,810 11,421,977
 Accruals  622,031 638,860 612,386 632,860
 Advance for sales  1,797,809 824,208 1,797,809 824,208
 Amounts due to subsidiaries  - - 2,230 6,352

   41,566,442 38,296,777 41,547,838 38,285,940

 Trade payables and other payable totalling of RM32,110,605 (2017: RM25,071,645) in the Group and Company 
 will be settled based on regulation plan (Note 29 (c)(ii)) .

 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from 
 30 to 90 days (2017: 30 to 90 days) except for as stated above.

 The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand.

19 Share capital  

          2018 2017
          Unit Unit 
 Issued and fully paid ordinary shares   
 At start and end of the financial year    68,229,084 68,229,084

 Ordinary shares of the Company have no par value. The holder of ordinary shares is entitled to receive dividends 
 as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions.
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20	 Significant	related	party	disclosures

 Compensation of key management personnel

 The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel during the year are as follows:

                                                                                                                               Group and Company

          2018 2017
          RM RM

 Short term employee benefits    715,209 581,880
 Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plan   71,436 80,134

          786,645 662,014
 Included in the total key management personnel are:    
 Directors’ remuneration (Note 9)    96,000 102,000

21 Commitments

 Operating lease commitment - as lessee

 Information regarding the operating lease in relation to lease of land for the factory is disclosed in Note 12.

22	 Fair	value	of	financial	instruments

	 (a)		Fair	 value	 of	 financial	 instruments	 by	 classes	 that	 are	 not	 carried	 at	 fair	 value	 and	 whose	 carrying	
  amounts are not reasonable approximation of fair value

                                                                                                         Group and Company

         2018                                 2017 
        Carrying    Carrying 
        amount  Fair value  amount   Fair value
        RM  RM  RM  RM
  Financial assets:        
  Unquoted shares  249,139  *  364,686  *

 *Fair value information has not been disclosed for the Group’s investment in equity instrument that is carried at cost 
 because fair value cannot be measured reliably. This equity instrument represents ordinary shares that is not 
 quoted on any market and does not have any comparable industry peer that is listed. In addition, the variability in 
 the range of reasonable fair value estimates derived from valuation techniques is significant.

 (b) Determination of fair value

  Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are reasonable 
  approximation of fair value

  The following are classes of financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts 
  are reasonable approximation of fair value:

           Note

  Trade and other receivables     16
  Trade and other payables     18

  The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of fair values, due 
  to their short-term in nature.
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23 Financial risk management objectives and policies

 The Group and Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their operations and use of financial 
 instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.

 The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management of these risks, which are 
 executed by the Financial Controller and management. The audit committee provides independent oversight to the 
 effectiveness of the risks management process.

 It is, and has been throughout the current and previous financial period, the Group’s policy that no derivatives shall 
 be undertaken except for the use as hedging instruments where appropriate and cost-efficient. The Group and the 
 Company do not apply hedge accounting.

 The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and Company’s exposure to the above-mentioned 
 financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks. 

 (a) Credit risk

  Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty default 
  on its obligations. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other 
  receivables. For other financial assets (including cash and bank balances), the Group and the Company 
  minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

  The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred due to increased 
  credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is Group’s policy 
  that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, 
  receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts 
  is not significant.

  Exposure to credit risk

  At the reporting date, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the 
  carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the statements of financial position.

  Credit risk concentration profile

  The Group determines concentration of credit risk by monitoring the country profile of its trade receivables on 
  an ongoing basis. The credit risk concentration profile of the Group’s trade receivables at the reporting date 
  is as follows: 

                                                                                                                     Group

         2018                                 2017 
        RM  % of total  RM  % of total
  By country:        
  Malaysia  4,901,624  100.0  706,064  100.0

  By customers:       
  2 customers  933,666  19.0  376,087  53.0

 Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

 Information regarding trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is disclosed in Note 16. 
 Deposits with licensed banks that are neither past due nor impaired are placed with or entered into with 
 reputable financial institutions with high credit ratings and no history of default.

 Financial assets that are either past due or impaired

 Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is disclosed in Note 16.
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 (b) Liquidity risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations 
  due to shortage of funds. The Group’s exposures to liquidity risk arise primarily from mismatches of the 
  maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group manages its debt maturity profile, operating cash flows 
  and the availability of funding so as to ensure that refinancing, repayment and funding needs are met.

  The Group’s overall liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient levels of cash to meet its working 
  capital requirements. In addition, the Group strives to maintain available banking facilities at a reasonable 
  level to its overall debt position. As far as possible, the Group raises funding from shareholders, capital 
  markets and financial institutions and balances its portfolio with some short term funding so as to achieve 
  overall cost effectiveness.

	 	 Analysis	of	financial	instruments	by	remaining	contractual	maturities	

  The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s liabilities at the reporting 
  date based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.
       

        On demand 

   Group - 2018  or within one year  1 to 5 years Total 

   Financial liabilities RM   RM RM
 
   Trade and other payables 39,146,602 - 39,146,602
   Accruals  622,031 - 622,031
   
   Total undiscounted financial liabilities 39,768,633 - 39,768,633

   
   Company - 2018 RM RM RM

   Trade and other payables 39,137,643 - 39,137,643
   Accruals  612,386 - 612,386
 
   Total undiscounted financial liabilities 39,750,029 - 39,750,029

 (c) Interest rate risk

  Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and the Company’s financial 
  instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

  The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from its loans and borrowings.

  The Group’s policy is to manage interest cost using a mix of fixed and floating rate debts.

  Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk

  At the reporting  date, if interest rates had been 100 basis points lower/higher, with all other variables held 
  constant, the Group’s loss net of tax would remain unchanged because the Group has no borrowings.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 30 September 2018
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23 Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

  (d) Foreign currency risk

  Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
  because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

  The Group has transactional currency exposure arising from sales or purchase that are denominated in a 
  currency other than the functional currency of the Group ie RM. The foreign currencies in which these 
  transactions are denominated are mainly United States Dollars (“USD”).

  Approximately NIL (2017: NIL) and NIL (2017: NIL) of the Group’s sales and costs are denominated in foreign 
  currencies. The Group’s trade receivable and trade payable balances at the reporting date have similar 
  exposures.

  Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk

  The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s and the Company’s loss net of tax to a 
  reasonably possible change in the USD exchange rate against the functional currency of the Group entities 
  with all other variables held constant.
           
          Group and Company  

          Impact on loss net of tax

          Decrease/(Increase)

          RM
 
  USD/RM – strengthened 5%    NIL

  USD/RM – weakened 5%    NIL

24 Capital management

 The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and 
 healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

 The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.

 The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. 
 The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. Included in the Group net debt are loans and 
 borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and bank balances. Capital includes equity attributable to owners 
 of the parent.
 

                                    Group                                      Company 

    2018 2017 2018 2017 
   RM   RM RM RM

 Trade payables, other payables and accruals 39,768,633 37,472,569 39,750,029 37,461,732
 Less: Deposits, cash and bank balances  (1,375,657) (334,117) (1,373,611) (330,065)

 Net debt  38,392,976 37,138,452 38,376,418 37,131,667
       
 Equity attributable to owners of the Company (25,972,426) (23,069,372) (25,911,730) (23,025,445)
       
 Capital and net debt  12,420,550 14,069,080 12,464,688 14,106,222
       
 Gearing ratio  309% 264% 308% 263%
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25 Segmental information

 Geographical information

 Revenue information based on the geographical location of customers is as follows:

                                                                                                                                             Revenue

          2018 2017
          RM RM

 Malaysia       39,006,965 7,521,075

 No segmental analysis by business segment had been prepared as the operations of the Group are principally 
 flour milling and trading of its related products. The other activities are not significant to the Group.

 Information about a major customer

 Revenue from one major customer amounted to RM19,299,664 (2017: RM6,672,640).

26	 Significant	accounting	judgements	and	estimates

 The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
 assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure 
 of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates 
 could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability 
 affected in the future. 

 Judgements made in applying accounting policies

 There were no significant judgements made in applying the accounting policies of the Group which may have 
 significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

 The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date 
 that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
 the next financial year are discussed below:

 Depreciation of plant and machinery

 The cost of plant and machinery is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets’ useful live. Management 
 estimates the useful lives of these plant and machinery to be 10 to 30 years. These are common life expectancies 
 applied for the assets owned by the Group. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments 
 could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges 
 could be revised.

 Impairment on property, plant and equipment

 The Group assesses whether there are indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at end of the reporting
 date. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts 
 may not be recoverable. 

 During the current financial year, the Group has recognised impairment losses in property, plant and equipment. 
 The Group carried out the impairment test based on a variety of estimation including the value in use of 
 cash-generating units (“CGU”) to which the property, plant and equipment are allocated. Estimating the value in 
 use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expecting future cash flow from the CGU and also to choose 
 a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flow. Further details of the 
 impairment losses recognised for the property, plant and equipment are disclosed in Note 12 to the financial 
 statements.
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27 Adoption of new and revised Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations

 During the financial year, the Group has adopted the following new and revised Malaysian Financial Reporting 
 Standards and Interpretations (collectively referred to as ‘MFRSs’), issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards 
 Board (‘MASB’) and effective for the financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017:

 MFRSs	that	do	not	have	significant	impacts	on	these	financial	statements	

 The following new and revised MFRSs issued by the MASB, effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 
 January 2017, have been adopted, but the adoptions do not have a significant impact on the financial statements:

 Effective for the financial period beginning on or after 1 January 2017

 Amendments to MFRS 107  Disclosure Initiative
 Amendments to MFRS 112  Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised 
       Losses 
 Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle:
 Amendments to MFRS 12  Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

28 Standards issued but not yet effective

 As at the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards, Amendments and Issue 
 Committee Interpretations (“IC Int”) have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (MASB) but 
 are not yet effective and have not been adopted by the Group.

 Effective for financial period beginning on or after 1 January 2018

 MFRS 9     Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 as issued by IASB in July 2014)
 MFRS 15    Revenue from Contracts with Customers
 MFRS 15    Clarification to MFRS 15
 Amendments to MFRS 4  Applying MFRS 9 Financial Instruments with 
        MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
 Amendments to MFRS 140  Transfers of Investment Property
 IC Int 22     Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
 Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle:
 Amendments to MFRS 1  First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards
 Amendments to MFRS 128  Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

 Effective for financial period beginning on or after 1 January 2019

 MFRS 16   Leases
 IC Int 23     Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
 Amendments to MFRS 9  Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
 Amendments to MFRS 119  Employee Benefits (Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement) 
 Amendments to MFRS 128  Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
 Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle:
 Amendments to MFRS 3 and MFRS 11   Previously Held Interest in a Joint Operation 
 Amendments to MFRS 112  Income Tax Consequences of Payment on Financial Instruments 
        Classified as Equity
 Amendments to MFRS 123  Borrowing Costs Eligible for Capitalisation

 Effective for financial period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

 Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in MFRS Framework:
 Amendments to MFRS 2  Share-Based Payment
 Amendments to MFRS 3  Business Combinations 
 Amendments to MFRS 6  Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
 Amendments to MFRS 14  Regulatory Deferral Accounts
 Amendments to MFRS 101  Presentation of Financial Statements 
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28 Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

 Effective for financial period beginning on or after 1 January 2020  (continued)

 Amendments to MFRS 108  Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
 Amendments to MFRS 134  Interim Financial Reporting 
 Amendments to MFRS 137  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
 Amendments to MFRS 138  Intangible Assets
 Amendments to IC Int 12  Service Concession Arrangements  
 Amendments to IC Int 19  Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
 Amendments to IC Int 20  Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
 Amendments to IC Int 22  Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
 Amendments to IC Int 132  Intangible Assets – Web Site Costs

 Effective for financial period beginning on or after 1 January 2021

 MFRS 17    Insurance Contracts 

29	 Significant	events	during	the	financial	year

 (a) On 09 February 2018, the Company (KFM) has: 

  (i)  entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Shou Guang Chang Tao Economic And Trade 
    Co. Ltd. (“SGCT”) pertaining to a proposed collaboration through either a business collaboration 
    arrangement between both parties or a direct acquisition of a majority equity interest in SGCT by KFM to 
    facilitate the Company’s expansion of its trading of starch business as well as its premixed flour in China; 

  (ii) submitted to Bursa Securities the withdrawal of the Proposed Regularisation Plan, which was submitted to
     Bursa Securities on 29 September 2017 and applied for an extension of time of another nine(9) months 
    for the Company to resubmit a revised Proposed Regularisation Plan. 

 (b) On 21 February 2018, the Company has entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with MCM 
  Petcare Sdn. Bhd. (“MCM”) pertaining to a proposed collaboration through either a business collaboration 
  arrangement between both parties or a direct acquisition of a majority equity interest in MCM by KFM to 
  facilitate the Company’s expansion of its trading and retailing of pet food products with the eventual plan of 
  manufacturing pet foods products. 

 (c) On 07 August 2018, the Company has submitted a revised Regularisation Plan to Bursa Securities to undertake 
  the following proposals to regularize its financial conditions: 

  (i)  proposed private placement of 27,290,000 new shares of the Company to the Placement Investor at an 
    issue price of RM0.10 per Placement Share; 

  (ii) proposed restructuring of debts owing by the Company to: the Scheme Creditors pursuant to Proposed 
    Debt Settlement; and Lotus Essential Sdn Bhd pursuant to Proposed Debt Conversion; 

  (iii) proposed renounceable rights issue of up to 477,595,420 Rights Shares at an issue price of RM0.10 per 
    Rights Share on the basis of five Rights Shares for every one KFM share held following the Proposed 
    Private Placement on the Entitlement Date, together with up to 238,797,710 free detachable warrants on 
    the basis of one warrant for every two Rights Shares subscribed for;

  (iv) proposed amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company’s Constitution to facilitate the 
    issuance of redeemable convertible preference shares pursuant to the Proposed Debt Conversion.

 (d) On 02 July 2018, the Company obtained the ISO 9001: 2015.

30	 Approval	of	financial	statements	

 The financial statements have been approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors 
 on 8 January 2019.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
KUANTAN FLOUR MILLS BERHAD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Kuantan flour Mills Berhad, which comprise the statements of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income, the statements of financial position as at 30 September 2018 of the Group and of the 
Company, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on 
pages 29 to 58.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group 
and of the Company as at 30 September 2018, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on 
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct 
and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We also draw attention to Note 2(b) in the financial statements, which indicates that the Group and the Company 
incurred net losses during the financial year ended 30 September 2018 of RM2,904,588 and RM2,886,285 respectively 
and, as at that date, the Group and the Company had net current liabilities of RM30,831,352 and RM30,776,023 
respectively and negative shareholders’ funds of RM25,972,426 and RM25,911,730 respectively. 

The Company had submitted its revised Proposed Regularisation Plan (“PRP”) to Bursa Securities for approval on 
07 August 2018.

The going concern assumption is highly dependent upon successful approval and implementation of the Regularisation 
Plan and the ability of the Group and the Company to generate sufficient cash flows to fulfil their obligation as and when 
fall due.

As stated in Note 2(b), these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 2(b), indicate that a 
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. The key audit matters for the audit of the 
financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole are described below. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of 
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures 
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of 
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis of our opinion 
on the accompanying financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Refer to Note 12 to the financial statements)
 
As at 30 September 2018, included in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are building, factory plant and 
machinery. The continued operating losses registered by the Group and the Company are indications that the assets 
may be impaired. Management has performed an impairment assessment to estimate the value in use of these assets 
based on discounted future cash flows.

This area was important to our audit due to the significance of the carrying value of property, plant and equipment as 
well as the significant judgement involved in formulating assumptions to the cash flow projection for value in use 
computations.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others:

(a) Reviewing the underlying assumptions used to prepare the projections, such as the discount rate and quantities 
 sold. We corroborated the key assumptions with management’s plans and existing contracts, where applicable;

(b) Reviewing the methodology of impairment assessment and assessed the discount factor used, and performed 
 sensitivity analysis of the changes in key assumptions.

The Board of Directors’ conclusion on the impairment assessment and related disclosures are included in Note 3(d) 
to the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Directors’ Report but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and our 
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also 
responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the 
Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the 
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued) 

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on 
Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, 
 whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
 evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
 misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
 intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
 appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
 Group’s and of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
 related disclosures made by the Directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
 audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
 significant doubt on the Group’s or the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
 financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
 Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future 
 events or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the 
 Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
 represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
 within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the 
 direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication.

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies 
Act, 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of 
this report.

McMillan Woods Thomas Jay Julian A/L Jaya Thalagah
(AF 001879)    [2692/12/19(J)]
Chartered Accountants Partner of the firm

Kuantan      8 January 2019 
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STATISTIC ON SHAREHOLDINGS
as at 31 December 2018

DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE OF SHAREHOLDERS 

Issued and fully paid : RM3,442,279 
Class of shares : Ordinary shares 
Voting rights : One(1) vote per ordinary share

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN THE COMPANY AND ITS RELATED CORPORATIONS

 SIZE OF HOLDINGS MALAYSIAN FOREIGN MALAYSIAN FOREIGN MALAYSIAN FOREIGN

 Less Than 100  83  2  1,739   59  0.00 0.00
 100 - 1000  947  7  893,195   6,600  1.31 0.01
 1001 - 10000  1,418  17  5,863,725   81,900  8.59 0.16
 10001 - 100000  367  12  12,599,166   332,200  18.47 0.49
 100001 and below 5%  73  5  32,057,100   2,315,700  46.98 3.39
 5% and above  2  0  14,077,700   -  20.63 0.00

   2,890  43  65,492,625   2,736,459  95.99 4.01

 Name of Substantial Shareholder Direct % Deemed %

  Interest  Interest

 Dennis Tow Jun Fye  9,606,000  14.079  -   -   
 Neo Kim Hock  5,346,250  7.835  -   -   

 Name of Director Direct % Deemed %

  Interest  Interest

 Kushairi bin Zaidel  -     -    -    - 
 Iskandar Zurkanain bin Mohamed  -     -    -    -
 Low Koon Min    -     -    -    - 

 All Directors, by virtue of their interests in the shares of the Company, are also deemed to have interests in the shares 
 of the Company’s subsidiaries to the extent that the Company has an interest.

                                                 No. of Holders        No. of Shares                                     %

                                                                                   No. of Shares

                                                                                   No. of Shares
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STATISTIC ON SHAREHOLDINGS (continued)
as at 31 December 2018

THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS 

 NO. NAMES NO. OF SHARES %

 1 DENNIS TOW JUN FYE                                    9,606,000 14.08            

 2 NEO KIM HOCK                                          4,471,700 6.55               

 3 LIM WILLIE                                            3,300,000 4.84               

 4 LEE CHAI HUAT                                         2,180,000 3.20           

 5 MAYBANK SECURITIES NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD         2,000,000 2.93 
  PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TEE BOON KEE                 
    
 6 LIM SAM KEOW                                          1,714,200 2.51             

 7 LAW CHEE KHEONG                                       1,082,700 1.59                  

 8 CITIGROUP NOMINEES (ASING) BHD                          959,700 1.41 
  EXEMPT AN FOR OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED 
  (CLIENT A/C-NR)     

 9 TAN HOOK BENG                                            900,000 1.32                     

 10 WONG MUN CHEN                                            900,000 1.32 
          
 11 MAYBANK SECURITIES NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD           858,200 1.26                       
  MAYBANK KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE LTD FOR TAN BOON KIAT                        
          
 12 LEE KA SOON                                              848,400 1.24 

 13 AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD                        833,000 1.22                                     
  PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAN BOON KIAT                

 14 ROZANA BINTI REDZUAN                                     752,700 1.10 
          
 15 CIMSEC NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD                           722,500 1.06 
  EXEMPT AN FOR CGS-CIMB SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD. 
  (RET’L CLIENTS)     

 16 GAN NYAP LIOU @ GAN NYAP LIOW                             599,500 0.88 
          
 17 CHAN WAI KIM                                              589,800 0.86 
          
 18 CHONG FONG TAI                                            500,000 0.73 
          
 19 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD                       500,000 0.73
  PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LIM KIAM HOOI                

 20 KOH KIM HEOK                                              490,000 0.72 
          
 21 TAN SIOW HWEE                                             485,000 0.71 
          
 22 WONG HUEY PING                                            485,000 0.71 
          
 23 HOO YEEK FOO                                              463,000 0.68 
          
 24 ONG MUM TONG                                              450,000 0.66 

 25 WONG TIN WOOI                                             450,000 0.66 
          
 26 SIM SOH POW                                               430,000 0.63 
          
 27 LEE WAI FONG                                              422,000 0.62 
          
 28 CHONG HUP CHING                                           400,000 0.59 
          
 29 GOH LEE HIAN                                              400,000 0.59 

 30 LAM HUAT TIN                                              400,000 0.59                                
     

    38,193,400 55.99
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LIST OF PROPERTIES

LIST OF PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP as at 30 September 2018

 Location Tenure  Date of Area Description Age of  Net
   Revaluation/   Building Carrying
   Date of    Amount
   Acquisition    RM’000 

 Pajakan Negeri 21 years and  15-Sep-85 25,425 Office 33 years and 192 
 550 Lot 1863 Mukim 3.5 months  sq. metres and Factory 26 years 570
 Sungai Karang, lease expiring on
 Kuantan, Pahang. 30 December 2027

 Pajakan Negeri 17 years and  1-Jun-10 4,253 Wheat silos 16 years 941 
 550 Lot 1863 Mukim 7 months  sq. metres 
 Sungai Karang, lease expiring on
 Kuantan, Pahang. 30 December 2027

A summary of KFM-owned properties is set out as below:
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NOTICE OF THIRTY-FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Thirty-Fourth Annual General Meeting of Kuantan Flour Mills Berhad will 
be held at Function Room 1, Rocana Hotel, 1st floor, B2-B10, Lorong Tun Ismail 8, Sri Dagangan II, 25000 Kuantan, 
Pahang on Wednesday, 27 February 2019 at 3 p.m. to transact the following businesses: -

AGENDA

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements of the Company and of the Group for the (Please refer 
 f inancial year ended 30 September 2018 and the Reports of the Directors and Explanatory 
 Auditors thereon. Note 1)
 
2. To approve the Directors’ fees for the financial year ended 30 September 2018. (Ordinary
  Resolution 1)

3. To re-elect as Director, Iskandar Zurkanain Bin Mohamed who retires by rotation in  (Ordinary
 accordance with Company’s Constitution (Article 63 of the Company’s Article of  Resolution 2)
 Association as adopted before the commencement of the Companies Act 2016) and, 
 being eligible, offers himself for re-election. 

4. To re-elect as Director, Ms. Low Koon Min, who retires by rotation in accordance with  (Ordinary
 Company’s Constitution (Article 68 of the Company’s Article of Association as adopted  Resolution 3)
 before the commencement of the Companies Act 2016) and, being eligible, offers herself 
 for re-election.
  
5. To re-appoint Messrs. McMillan Woods Thomas (Audit Firm No. AF001879) as the (Ordinary 
 Company’s Auditors for the ensuing year and to authorize the Board of Directors to fix  Resolution 4)
 their remuneration.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution:-

6. AUTHORITY TO ISSUE SHARES  
 “THAT, subject always to the Companies Act 2016, the Company’s Constitution and the  (Ordinary
 approvals of the relevant governmental/regulatory authorities, if applicable, the Directors  Resolution 5)
 be and are hereby empowered, pursuant to Section 75 and Section 76 of the Companies 
 Act 2016, to issue shares in the Company from time to time and upon such terms and 
 conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem 
 fit provided that the aggregate number of shares issued pursuant to this Resolution does 
 not exceed 10% of the total number of issue shares of the Company for the time being 
 and that the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing of 
 and quotation for the additional shares so issued on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
 and that such authority shall continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next Annual 
 General Meeting of the Company.” 
 
7. To transact any other business of which due notice shall have been given.
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NOTICE OF THIRTY-FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (continued)

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD,

LAANG JHE HOW (MIA 25193)
Company Secretary

Kuala Lumpur
31 January 2019

NOTES:-

1. Only a member whose name appears on the Record of Depositors as at 20 February 2019 shall be entitled to 
 attend the meeting and to speak and vote thereat. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint 
 a proxy or proxies to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company. 

2. A member may appoint one or more than one proxy to attend and vote instead of the member. Where a member 
 appoints two or more proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless the member specifies the proportion of his 
 holdings to be represented by each proxy.

3. Where a member is an authorized nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 
 1991, it may appoint at least one proxy in respect of each securities accounts it holds with ordinary shares of the 
 Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.

4. The instrument appointing proxy in the case of an individual shall be signed by the appointer or by his attorney duly 
 authorized and in the case of a corporation, the instrument appointing proxy must be under seal or under the hand 
 of an officer or attorney duly authorised. In the case of joint holders, all holders must sign the Form of Proxy.

5. The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at Kawasan Lembaga 
 Pelabuhan Kuantan, KM25, Jalan Kuantan/ Kemaman, Tanjung Gelang, 25740 Kuantan, Pahang not less than 
 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or at any adjournment thereof. 

6. Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, 
 all the resolutions set out in this Notice shall be put to vote by poll.

EXPLANATORY NOTES ON ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Item 1 of the Agenda

 The item is meant for discussion only, as the provision of Section 340(1) of the Companies Act 2016 does not 
 require a formal approval of the shareholders for the Audited Financial Statements. Hence, this item is not put 
 forward for voting. 

EXPLANATORY NOTES ON SPECIAL BUSINESS

2. Ordinary Resolution 5– Proposed Authority to issue shares

 The Company wishes to renew the mandate on the authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 75 and Section 76 
 of the Companies Act 2016 at the 34th Annual General Meeting of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the 
 “General Mandate”).

 The Company had been granted a general mandate by its shareholders at the 33rd Annual General Meeting of the 
 Company held on 27 February 2018 (hereinafter referred to as the “Previous Mandate”). 

 As at the date of this notice, the Previous Mandate granted by the shareholders had not been utilised and hence 
 no proceeds were raised therefrom.
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NOTICE OF THIRTY-FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (continued)

 The General Mandate will enable the Directors of the Company to issue shares any time to such persons in their 
 absolute discretion without convening a general meeting as it would be both time and cost-consuming to organise 
 a general meeting. This authority, unless revoked or varied by the Company in a general meeting, will expire at the 
 next Annual General Meeting. The proceeds raised from the General Mandate will provide flexibility to the Company 
 for any possible fund-raising activities, including but not limited to further placing of shares, for purpose of funding 
 future investment project(s), working capital and / or acquisitions. 

 Statement Accompanying the Notice of Annual General Meeting
 Pursuant to Paragraph 8.27(2) of the Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad

 Name of Director who is standing for re-election accordance to Company’s Constitution (Article 63 and Article 68 
 of the Company’s Articles of Association as adopted before the commencement of the Companies Act 2016):

 -    Iskandar Zurkanain Bin Mohamed
 -    Low Koon Min 

 The details of the Director who are standing for re-election / re-appointment are set out in the Director’s Profile on 
 page 22 and their securities holdings in the Company are set out in the Statistics on Shareholdings on pages 
 62 to 63.
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I/We                                                                                                NRIC No./Passport No./Company No.

of

being a member/members of  KUANTAN FLOUR MILLS BERHAD, hereby appoint
 

*and/*or failing him/her (*delete as appropriate)

as *my/our proxy to vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf at the Thirty-Fourth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 
Function Room 1, Rocana Hotel, 1st Floor, B2-B10, Lorong Tun Ismail 8, Sri Dagangan II, 25000 Kuantan, Pahang on Wednesday, 
27 February 2019 at 3 p.m. or any adjournment thereof and *my/our proxy is to vote as indicated below:-

(Please indicate with an “X” in the space provided and to show how you wish your vote to be cast. If no specific direction as to voting is 
given, the proxy will vote or abstain at his/her discretion).

Dated on  this         day of                        2019

Signature(s)/Common Seal of Shareholder(s)
* Strike out whichever is inapplicable

Notes:
 
1. Only a member whose name appears on the Record of Depositors as at 20 February 2019 shall be entitled to attend the meeting and to speak and 
 vote thereat. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint a proxy or proxies to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy may but 
 need not be a member of the Company. 

2. A member may appoint one or more than one proxy to attend and vote instead of the member. Where a member appoints two or more proxies, 
 the appointment shall be invalid unless the member specifies the proportion of his holdings to be represented by each proxy.

3. Where a member is an authorized nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991, it may appoint at least one proxy 
 in respect of each securities accounts it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.

4. The instrument appointing proxy in the case of an individual shall be signed by the appointer or by his attorney duly authorized and in the case of a 
 corporation, the instrument appointing proxy must be under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised. In the case of joint holders, 
 all holders must sign the Form of Proxy.

5. The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at Kawasan Lembaga Pelabuhan Kuantan, KM25, 
 Jalan Kuantan/ Kemaman, Tanjung Gelang, 25740 Kuantan, Pahang not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or at 
 any adjournment thereof. 

CDS Account No.

No. of  shares held

ORDINARY BUSINESS

SPECIAL BUSINESS :-

RESOLUTION *FOR *AGAINST

Full Name

Item Agenda

Full Name

NRIC No./Passport No.

NRIC No./Passport No.

Proportion of Shareholdings

Proportion of Shareholdings

No.of Shares

No.of Shares

%

%

Address

Address

2.  To approve Directors’ fees for the financial year ended 30 September 2018.  1

6.  Authority to issue shares                                       5

1.  To receive the Audited Financial Statements of the Company and of the Group for the financial year ended 30 September 2018

PROXY FORM

4.  To re-elect Ms. Low Koon Min, who retires pursuant to Article 68 of the   3
  Company’s Constitution.

3.  To re-elect, Iskandar Zurkanain Bin Mohamed who retires pursuant to  2 
  Article 63 of the Company’s Constitution. 

5.  To re-appoint Messrs McMillan Woods Thomas as the Company’s Auditors  4 
  for the ensuing year and to authorise the Board of Directors to fix their  
  remuneration.

Company No. 119598-P
(Incorporated in Malaysia)



The Company Secretary
KUANTAN FLOUR MILLS BERHAD (Company No. 119598-P)

Kawasan Lembaga Pelabuhan Kuantan
KM 25, Jalan Kuantan/Kemaman
Tanjung Gelang, 
25740 Kuantan, Pahang, Malaysia

2ND FOLD HERE

FOLD THIS FLAP TO SEAL

1ST FOLD HERE

AFFIX STAMP
HERE




